PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETING
TAKE NOTICE THAT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE
Board of Directors of
Reunion Ranch Water Control and Improvement District
Will be held at the offices of Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC,
12912 Hill Country Blvd., Suite F-232, Austin, Texas 78738 (SEE NOTES BELOW)

in Travis County, Texas, commencing at 2:00 p.m. on July 20, 2021, to consider and act upon any
or all of the following:

PLEASE NOTE: THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD BY REMOTE ACCESS ONLY IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE MARCH 16, 2020 ORDER BY GOVERNOR ABBOTT TEMPORARILY SUSPENDING CERTAIN
REQUIREMENTS OF THE TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT TO ADVANCE THE GOAL OF LIMITING FACE-
TO-FACE MEETINGS TO SLOW THE SPREAD OF COVID-19. NO PERSONS WILL BE AT THE MEETING
LOCATION AND NO EQUIPMENT WILL BE AT THE MEETING LOCATION FOR ACCESS TO THE
MEETING. HOWEVER, MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ACCESS THIS MEETING BY TELEPHONE AND
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY CALLING ONE OF THE FOLLOWING TOLL-FREE NUMBERS: (877)
853-5247 OR (888) 788-0099 AND ENTERING THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: MEETING ID:
87994980624 AND PASSWORD: 672682, USING THE ZOOM APP YOU CAN ALSO ACCESS THE MEETING
ON YOUR SMART PHONE OR COMPUTER BY ENTERING THE FOREGOING MEETING [D AND
PASSWORD.

PLEASE SEE THE DISTRICT’S WEBSITE AT WWW.RRWCID.ORG FOR THE MEETING PACKET,

AGENDA
1. Call to order.
2. Roll call of Directors.
3. Public Comments.

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors concerning any issue that is not on the
agenda, The response of the Board to any comment under this heading is limited to making a statement of specific factual
information in response to the inquiry, or, reciting existing policy in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation of (he issues
is limited to a proposal to place it on Lhe agenda for a later meeting. Each speaker shall be limited to 3 minutes, unless more
than 10 members of the public wish to speak during this meeting, In such case, speakers offering public comment shall be
limited to 1 minute each.

Note: Members of the public wishing to address the Board of Directors on specific agenda items will be required to indicate the agenda items on
which they wish to speak. They will be given an opportunity to speak when the item is called and prior to consideration by the Board, Such
comments shall be limited to 3 minutes per speaker for each agenda item. 1f more than 10 members of the public wish to speak, all speakers shall
be limited to | minute each per item per person.

4, Minutes of prior meetings.

5. Resolution Regarding Annual Review of District Investment Policy and Investment
Strategies

6. Developer’s Report on status of construction within the District, development entitlements,

provision of water, wastewater and drainage services within the District, sales of lots to
builders, homebuilding within the District, status of development loans and actions of third
parties opposing or supporting development within the District.



10.

11,

12,

13.

14.

15.

Approval of construction plans and pay estimates, change orders and acceptances of
completion with respect to construction contracts.

Advertisement for bids and approval, award, recommendation and administration of
construction contracts.

Engineer’s Report on status of construction within the District, development entitlements,
provision of water, wastewater and drainage services within the District, pending permit
applications, sales of lots to builders, homebuilding within the District and past, present
and future bond issues; Use of effluent to irrigate rights-of-way and timeline for same.

Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion; Wastewater Treatment Plant improvements and
modifications; alternatives for additional odor control measures at the District’s wastewater
plant and funding for same, including possible agreement with Taylor Morrison on funding
for same; Proposal for third-party odor consultant/inspector.

Review of District easements and land necessary for District operations.
Long-term District Improvements Plan.

Rules and Regulations Governing Water and Sanitary Sewer Facilities, Service Lines,
Communications, Erosion Control, Drainage and District Property.

Committee Reports, Assignment and Membership.
District Operations (Dennis & Terri)
Communications (Terri & Dennis)
WTCPUA (Nathan & Dennis)

Water Quality/Land Use (Ron & Terri)

SRl Fs

Operations and Maintenance Report.
A. Administrative
B Wastewater Treatment Plant; Odor Control Measures and Complaints; All
actions necessary to bring the wastewater treatment plant into compliance
with TCEQ permit and to mitigate odor problems
Wastewater Grinder Stations
Effluent Irrigation System & Fields
Distribution & Collection System & Lift Stations
Billing Adjustments
Delinquencies
Customer Meter Issues
Customer and Resident Complaints
Stormwater conveyance & pond maintenance
Landscaping
Notices to residents on water quality
Maintenance Items in connection with Pre-Purchase Inspection Letter
submitted by TCEQ.
Out of District Water/Wastewater Service Requests
Policy Regarding Use of Greenspace and other District Property

OZ ZrARCCEQEWUO



Pump rentals

Impact of winter storms on operation of water, wastewater and water quality
systems; system performance as designed and system failures; actions taken
to address system failures; recommendations for repairs or improvements
to systems; associated costs and possible application for disaster relief funds
Insurance claims

Maintenance access

&I

Procedures for disconnection of water service

Qo

SRS

16.  Expenditures, contracts, repairs, replacements and maintenance related to Operations and
Maintenance Report in Item 15 above,

17.  Bookkeeper’s Report on the financial affairs of the District, including authorization of
payment of bills.

18.  Legislative Update.

20.  Notice of Violations Issued by TCEQ dated August S, 2019; Exit Interview from TCEQ
site visit of July 10, 2020; TCEQ Notice of Enforcement for Compliance Evaluation
Investigation, dated September 25, 2020; Proposed Agreed Enforcement Order and related
fines; TCEQ Notice of Violation for Complaint Investigation dated June 16, 2021.

21.  Future board meetings and rules for in person meetings beginning in September.

22.  Adjourn.

The Board may go into closed session at any time when permitted by Chapter 551, Government Code. Before going into
closed session a quorum of the Board must be assembled in the meeting room, the meeting must be convened as an open meeting
pursuant to proper notice, and the presiding officer must announce that a closed session will be held and must identify the sections
of Chapter 551, Government Code, authorizing the closed session.

(SEAL) -—’f

Attorney for the District

ook ke ok ok o ok obe s sk obe sk ok sk obe ok sk ok ok ke ok o sl ok S ok ok ok o e ok ok sk sk s ok sk ok o sk sk ok ok o ok 3k ok e 3k sk ok sk sk ke sk sk sk s o ok ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok

The District is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Reasonable modifications and equal access to
communications will be provided upon request. Please call Jeniffer Concienne, Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC, at (512) 476-6604,
for information.



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF
REUNION RANCH WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF HAYS §

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Reunion Ranch Water Control and
Improvement District was held at 2:00 p.m. on June 15, 2021 by remote access only in accordance
with the March 16, 2020 Order by Governor Abbott temporarily suspending certain requirements
of the Texas Open Meetings Act to advance the goal of limiting face-to-face meetings to slow the

spread of COVID-19. The meeting was open to the public and notice was given as required by
the Texas Open Meetings Act and as modified by the Governor’s Order.

1.  CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order.

2. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS

A roll call of the Directors was taken. The Directors present were:

Dennis Daniel — President

Terri Purdy — Vice President

Ron Meyer - Secretary

Thomas J. Rogers, Jr. — Assistant Secretary
Nathan Neese — Assistant Secretary

thus constituting a quorum. All Directors were present.

Also present at the meeting were Bill Flickinger, Matt McPhail and Jeniffer Concienne
with Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC, Andrea Wyatt and Evan Parker with Murfee Engineering, Allen
Douthitt with Bott & Douthitt, Kristi Hester and Ronya Keyes with Inframark, LLC, Mike Moyer
with Taylor Morrison and resident Gary Grass.

3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS

Gary Grass asked about the status of the Quarterly Pond Report from Aquatic Features.
Manager Kristi Hester will provide the report to Mr. Grass.

4.  MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETINGS

President Dennis Daniel entertained a motion for approval of the Minutes of the May 18,
2021 board meeting. Motion was made by Ron Meyer and seconded by Tom Rogers to approve
the Minutes as presented. The motion carried unanimously.



5. DEVELOPER’S REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE
DISTRICT. DEVELOPMENT ENTITLEMENTS, PROVISION OF WATER.
WASTEWATER AND DRAINAGE SERVICES WITHIN THE DISTRICT,
SALES OF LOTS TO BUILDERS. HOMEBUILDING WITHIN THE DISTRICT,
STATUS OF DEVELOPMENT LOANS AND ACTIONS OF THIRD PARTIES
OPPOSING OR SUPPORTING DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE DISTRICT

Mike Moyer reported on the building metrics in the District. The construction trailer lots
are the only lots left from Taylor Morrison. Taylor Morrison will transition those lots to the HOA
within the next couple of months. The deed for the open spaces are still being worked on by the
HOA'’s attorney and Attorney Bill Flickinger. Director Ron Meyer inquired if the ponds are
included in the deed. Mr. Flickinger indicated that language will be included in the deed to provide
access to certain areas.

There was discussion of the funding from Taylor Morrison in connection with the odor
issues at the wastewater plant. Mr. Moyer is still working on the funding memo. Once approved
by Taylor Morrison’s legal team, he will provide it to the Jeniffer Concienne for distribution.

6. APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION PLANS AND PAY ESTIMATES. CHANGE
ORDERS AND ACCEPTANCES OF COMPLETION WITH RESPECT TO
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Engineer Andrea Wyatt discussed Pay Application No. 6 submitted by Excel Construction
Services, LLC in the amount of $858,600 for the WWTP expansion project.

Motion was made by Nathan Neese and seconded by Tom Rogers to approve payment of
the foregoing pay application as presented. The motion carried unanimously.

Ms. Wyatt also discussed the change proposals in connection with the winter freeze and
wastewater spills. Change Proposal #3 submitted by Excel Construction in the amount of $14,532
for the winter spill and Change Proposal #4 in the amount of $26,510 for the wastewater spills.
President Dennis Daniel asked about the time extensions that relate to the wastewater plant
expansion. The winter freeze caused the project to be delayed by 11 days and the spills caused the
project to be delayed by 31 days. Mike Moyer indicated that the spills should be accepted by the
District. However, due to the District having to incur the costs of pumping and hauling, Taylor
Morrison is fine with funding the costs to the change proposals. There was discussion of FEMA
assistance. Manager Kristi Hester submitted the application for assistance, and it is pending State
approval at this time. Director Ron Meyer and President Daniel discussed if any funds are received
by FEMA that those funds be prorated between administrative costs and repairs for what is being
reimbursed. President Daniel entertained a motion regarding FEMA reimbursement, but then
withdrew the motion. After discussion, motion was made by President Dennis Daniel and
seconded by Ron Meyer to approve Change Proposals as presented. The motion carried
unanimously.



7 ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS AND APPROVAL., AWARD,
RECOMMENDATION AND ADMINISTRATION OF CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTS

This item was not discussed.

8. ENGINEER’S REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE
DISTRICT, DEVELOPMENT ENTITLEMENTS. PROVISION OF WATER,
WASTEWATER AND DRAINAGE SERVICES WITHIN THE DISTRICT,
PENDING PERMIT APPLICATIONS. SALES OF LOTS TO BUILDERS,
HOMEBUILDING WITHIN THE DISTRICT AND PAST, PRESENT AND
FUTURE BOND ISSUES: USE OF EFFLUENT TO IRRIGATE RIGHTS-OF-
WAY AND TIMELINE FOR SAME

28 WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION: WASTEWATER
TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS:
ALTERNATIVES FOR ADDITIONAL ODOR CONTROL MEASURERS AT
THE DISTRICT’S WASTEWATER PLANT AND FUNDING FOR SAME,
INCLUDING POSSIBLE AGREEMENT WITH TAYLOR MORRISON ON
FUNDING FOR SAME, INCLUDING POSSIBLE AGREEMENT WITH
TAYLOR MORRISON ON FUNDING FOR SAME: PROPOSAL FOR THIRD-
PARTY ODOR CONSULTANT/INSPECTOR

Items 8 and 9 were discussed together.

Engineer Andrea Wyatt and Evan Parker discussed the Engineer’s Report as included in
the agenda package.

The wastewater plant is running at 88%. There was a delay of three weeks due to all the
rain. The contractor was able to install the new blowers and the lift station wet well. Additionally,
the exterior coating on the lift station is finished and the SBR basin bridge is currently being
installed. When the rain becomes less frequent, hopefully this week, the new basins are to be
grouted and the lift station pit is to be backfilled. MEC has continued to monitor basin levels, via
weekly SCADA data, to assess daily peak times to prevent overflows. There has also been some
solids hauled, which is to be expected, since there is no longer an option to waste into a sludge
box. Manager Kristi Hester advised that there have been no spills/overflows in over a month. The
system appears to be tight. Mrs. Hester also noted that she will review the lift station run times
and can check to see if and where 1&I comes from. This item will be added to the July agenda for
discussion. Director Ron Meyer noted that some manholes are below grade now. President Dennis
Daniel discussed the considerable amount of mud on the streets. There was discussion of getting
a street sweeper to get it cleaned up. President Daniel would like to get an email on when it will
be or has been addressed.

In regard to the 210 conversion MEC will meet with Perfect Cuts to finish running
calculations to size an appropriate effluent irrigation pump. These calculations will help provide

7



some data needed for the LCRA grant application due in September.

Mrs. Wyatt discussed locating a third-party odor consultant to review the wastewater plant
improvements. She spoke to one consultant and has reached out to another. Mike Moyer noted
that the consultant should realize some odors are typical at a wastewater plant but be able to address
unusual odors and then be able to identify deficiencies to be corrected. Vice President Terri Purdy
inquired about a backup plan. Evan Parker asked if the District has received any current odor
complaints. Manager Kristi Hester advised that they have not. President Daniel asked Mrs. Hester
to provide the odor log to Mr. Parker.

10. REVIEW OF DISTRICT EASEMENTS AND LAND NECESSARY FOR
DISTRICT OPERATIONS

President Dennis Daniel inquired about the timeframe to get all the easements wrapped up.
Attorney Bill Flickinger advised it would probably be completed in July/August per Mike Moyer.
Manager Kristi Hester will provide the areas in the District that have bad access for maintenance
to Mr. Flickinger and Mr. Moyer to be included in the documentation.

There was also discussion of this topic under the Developer’s report above.

11.  IMPROVEMENTS TO PEDESTRIAN ACCESS POINT ON EASEMENT FROM
MARY ELISE WAY TO WINDMILL POND

12.  LONG-TERM DISTRICT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

Items 11 and 12 were discussed together.

Director Ron Meyer reported that the improvements to the pedestrian access points should
be considered after the wastewater plant expansion is completed. This item should be under a
long-term capital improvement plan. Manager Kristi Hester advised that the committee should get
together to look at options and include it in next year’s budget.

Engineer Andrea Wyatt presented the pond inspection report and recommendations memo,

Specific items were included in the memo as requested by Director Ron Meyer and Vice
President Terri Purdy so that these items can be easily tracked.

The topics discussed as included in the memo are: Maintenance Access Road and
Pedestrian Access, Pathway Around Pond, Water Flowing over Concrete Pathway, Erosion
throughout Green Space and Impact on Pathway, Use of Pond for Recreation, Pond Aeration, Pond
Solids Removal, Weir Undermining, Accessability by Inframark and other issues.

There was also discussion on the runoff across the sidewalks and design of the sidewalks.
It appears that cutting a swell would divert the flow. Director Ron Meyer asked Mike Moyer to
review the culvert by the pond and review to see if the flow can be fixed. Mr. Moyer stated they
will take a look at it. They have been battling that flow for a while. They have previously

-4-



improved sidewalks where undermining occurred. Taylor Morrison does not have the budget for
additional repairs as they are trying to save everything that is left for the repairs to the wastewater
treatment plant. The HOA is responsible for the removal of the algae on the sidewalks. Director
Meyer will provide photos of the area to Mr. Moyer. President Dennis Daniel stated that his
concern is that the District not concentrate any water flows. The more that can be disbursed the
better and less erosion will occur.

Mrs. Wyatt discussed using the pond for recreational purposes. Under no circumstances
should people or pets enter the pond. However, fishing as catch and release is allowed. There was
discussion of putting signage around the pond. An eblast can also be sent out to all residents. An
aeration feature was recommended by the pond maintenance crew. An estimate of $4,800 was
submitted by Aquatic Features assuming that power is available. Aquatic Features can also submit
a proposal for solids removal and can prepare a survey. This will be a large budget item when
needed. There are three wet ponds that will need the evaluation. After discussion, a survey should
be prepared in next year’s budget. The ponds have been in place for approximately 10 years.
Manager Kristi Hester will reach out to Scott for an official proposal.

13. COMMITTEE REPORTS. ASSIGNMENT AND MEMBERSHIP
District Operations (Dennis & Terri)
Communications (Terri & Dennis)

WTCPUA (Nathan & Dennis)

Water Quality/Land Use (Ron & Terri)

SRl

President Dennis Daniel there was no activity on the District Operations committee.

Vice President Terri Purdy reported that in regard to the communications committee, the
signs have been installed at the irrigation fields.

Director Nathan Neese had no updates to discuss in regard to the WTCPUA.
Director Ron Meyer discussed the Water Quality/Land Use above.

Attorney Bill Flickinger reported that the District rules do not include drainage. They are
mostly erosion controls. Mr. Flickinger recommends meeting with the committee to review the
District’s drainage system. Manager Kristi Hester asked to be included in that meeting.

14.  OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT

A. Administrative

B. Wastewater Treatment Plant; Odor Control Measures and
Complaints; All actions necessary to bring the wastewater treatment
plant into compliance with TCEQ permit and to mitigate odor
problems
Wastewater Grinder Stations
Effluent Irrigation System & Fields
Distribution & Collection System & Lift Stations
Billing Adjustments

mmoa

-5



Delinquencies

Customer Meter Issues

Customer Complaints

Stormwater conveyance & pond maintenance

Landscaping

Notices to residents on water quality

Maintenance Items in connection with Pre-Purchase Inspection
Letter submitted by TCEQ.

Out of District Water/Wastewater Service Requests

Policy Regarding Use of Greenspace and other District Property
Pump rentals

Impact of winter storms on operation of water, wastewater and water
quality systems; system performance as designed and system
failures; actions take to address system failures; recommendations
for repairs or improvements to systems; associated costs and
possible application for disaster relief funds

R. Insurance claims

S Maintenance access

LPOozZ ZIIR-TTEQ

Manager Kristi Hester discussed the Executive Summary with the Board.

The District currently has 506 active connections. 8.03 million gallons of water was
purchased for the month of May. The District incurred a 6.5% water loss this period. Mrs. Hester
reported that 11 delinquent letters were mailed out. However, there were no disconnects of water
service.

Flows at the wastewater treatment plant totaled 1.37 MG, which averages 44,000 GPD.
Plant capacity is at 88%. The BOD and TSS permit levels exceeded the limit again around the 1%
of May. Mrs. Hester reported that they made progress on the treatment process and have reduced
the TSS and BOD levels. The problems have been partly due to the inability to manage solids.
President Dennis Daniel asked how the levels are still being exceeded. Mrs. Hester explained that
removing the sludge box may have caused limits to be exceeded. There is no solids management
right now, which is a big factor. Once there is a change in the system, it takes time to see the
improvement. Mrs. Hester is hopeful that next month, all will be in compliance. The non-potable
signs have been installed at the drip fields. Mrs. Hester reported that operations is cleaning the bar
screens twice per day to prevent air scrubber malfunction.

There was discussion of a TCEQ complaint on saturation of the irrigation fields. Those
fields were damaged when the bridge was erected. The irrigation boxes were far underground and
the leak took time to be discovered. The issue has now been fixed and the fields are dry.

President Dennis Daniel inquired about the FEMA disaster assistance and its process. Mrs.
Hester submitted the paperwork last week and once it is approved by the State, then the information
can be reviewed online. Mrs. Hester will provide an update as soon as it is available.



Director Ron Meyer discussed the fining process to homebuilders within the District.
President Daniel noted that there dirt piles in the street due to pool construction in the
neighborhood.

15. EXPENDITURES, CONTRACTS., REPAIRS, REPLACEMENTS AND
MAINTENANCE RELATED TO OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
REPORT IN ITEM 14 ABOVE

This item was not discussed.

16. BOOKKEEPER’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL AFFAIRS OF THE
DISTRICT, INCLUDING AUTHORIZATION OF PAYMENT OF BILLS

Bookkeeper Allen Douthitt discussed the financials and updated cash activity report with
the Board. Mr. Douthitt noted that the District is way over plan due to the sludge hauling. Mr.
Douthitt discussed the analysis of the operating fund balance due to the impact of the hauls and
maintenance to the system. President Dennis Daniel asked that Mr. Douthitt provide a written
document on this analysis so that it can be distributed to the Board. After discussion, President
Daniel entertained a motion. Motion was made by Nathan Neese and seconded by Ron Meyer to
approve the invoices, per diems and fund transfers as discussed. Tom Rogers had technical
difficulties and was unable to vote. The motion carried.

17.  LEGISLATIVE UPDATE

Attorney Bill Flickinger advised that he is in process of reviewing 29 senate bills and 43
house bills that possibly relate to the District. At the July board meeting, he will provide a detailed
report of those bills.

18.  NOTICE OF VIOLATIONS ISSUED BY TCEQ DATED AUGUST 5. 2019;
EXIT INTERVIEW FROM TCEQ SITE VISIT OF JULY 10, 2020. TCEQ
NOTICE _OF ENFORCEMENT FOR COMPLIANCE EVALUATION
INVESTIGATION, DATED SEPTEMBER 25. 2020; PROPOSED AGREED
ENFORCEMENT ORDER AND RELATED FINES

Attorney Bill Flickinger reiterated that the 60-day deadline has been abated pending
review by the TCEQ. No action is needed at this time.

19. REQUEST FOR BOARD RECOMMENDATION FOR WILLATT &
FLICKINGER, PLLC

Attorney Bill Flickinger asked for a Board recommendation for his firm. Mr. Flickinger
would like to be able to provide the recommendation to future clients or any client that asks for it.
The Board had no concerns in providing the recommendation. President Dennis Daniel entertained
amotion. Motion was made by Tom Rogers and seconded by Nathan Neese to authorize President
Dennis Daniel to prepare and sign a letter of recommendation for Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC.
The motion carried unanimously.



20.  ADJOURN

President Dennis Daniel entertained a motion for adjournment. Motion was made by tom
Rogers and seconded by Nathan Neese to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.

Dennis Daniel, President
Reunion Ranch WCID

ATTEST:

Ronald F. Meyer, Secretary
Reunion Ranch WCID

[SEAL]

t\ReunionRanch\minutes\06-15-21
6/30/21



RESOLUTION REGARDING ANNUAL REVIEW OF
DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY AND INVESTMENT STRATEGIES

THE STATE OF TEXAS

§
§
COUNTY OF HAYS §

REUNION RANCH WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WHEREAS, Section 2256.005, Government Code requires the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) of Reunion Ranch Water Control and Improvement District (the “District”) to, not less
than annually, adopt a written instrument by rule, order, ordinance or resolution stating that it has
reviewed the District’s investment policy and investment strategies and the written instrument so
adopted must record any changes made either to the investment policy or investment strategies;
and

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed its investment policy and investment strategies and
has determined that no changes are needed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
REUNION RANCH WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT THAT:

Section 1. The District states that it has reviewed the District’s Investment Policy and
Investment Strategies that was previously adopted on July 17, 2018 and determined that no
changes are required.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20% day of July, 2021.

Dennis Daniel
President, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Ronald F. Meyer
Secretary, Board of Directors

[DISTRICT SEAL]

1\ReunionRanchresolution-invespol2021
7/15/21



REUNION RANCH WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
CODE OF ETHICS AND FINANCIAL INVESTMENT, TRAVEL
AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES POLICY
July 17,2018
ARTICLEI
DEFINITIONS
1.01. Board. “Board” means the Board of Directors of the District.
1.02.  Business Organization. “Business Otganization” means a sole proprietorship,
partnership, firm, corporation, holding company, joint stock company, receivership, trust or any

other entity recognized by law through which business is conducted. For the purposes of Section
3.06 below, “Business Organization” shall have the meaning set forth in that Section.

1.03.  Commission. “Commission” means the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality,

1.04.  Director. “Director” means a person elected or appointed to serve on the Board of
Directors of the District.

1.05. District. “District” means Reunion Ranch Water Control and Improvement
District.

1.06. Employee. “Employee” means a person or Business Organization employed by
the District.

1.07.  Investment Officer. “Invesiment Officer” means a person appointed by the Board
to handle District investment.

1.08. Officer. “Officer” means an elected or appointed officer of the District, including
an Investment Officer.

1.09.  Professional Services Procurement Act. “Professional Services Procurement Act”
means Subchapter A, Chapter 2254, Texas Government Code, as amended from time to time.

1.10.  Public Funds Investment Act. “Public Funds Investment Act” means Chapter
2256, Texas Government Code, as amended from time to time,

1.11.  Public Funds Collateral Act. “Public Funds Collateral Act” means Chapter 2257,
Texas Government Code, as amended from time to time.

1.12.  Qualified Representative. "Qualified Representative " means a person who holds
a position with a Business Organization, who is authorized to act on behalf of the Business



Organization, and who is one of the following;

(A) for a Business Organization doing business that is regulated by or
registered with a securities commission, a person who is registered under the rules of the
National Association of Securities Dealers;

(B)  for a state or federal bank, a savings bank, or a state or federal credit
union, a member of the loan committee for the bank or branch of the bank or a person authorized
by corporate resolution to act on behalf of and bind the banking institution;

(C)  for an investment pool, the person authorized by the elected official or
board with authority to administer the activities of the investment pool to sign the written
instrument on behalf of the investment pool; or

(D) for an investment management firm registered under the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Section 80b-1 et seq.) or, if not subject to registration under that
Act, registered with the State Securities Board, a person who is an officer or principal of the
investment management firm.

1.13. Water Code. “Water Code” means the Texas Water Code, as amended from time
to time,

ARTICLE I

CODE OF ETHICS

2.01. Subject Matter. This Code of Ethics and Financial Investment, Travel and
Professional Services Policy (this “Policy” or “Code of Ethics”) is adopted under Sections
49.157 and 49.199 of the Water Code and Public Funds Investment Act. The subject matter of
this Policy is addressed by other statutes of the State of Texas, including those governing public
meetings, public records, audits, financial management, disqualifications of board members,
conflicts of interest, self-dealing and illegal and corrupt practices. This Policy is not intended to
supersede or summarize other provisions of applicable law.

2.02. Statement of Policy: Purpose of Code.

A. It is the policy of the District that all District Directors, Officers, and
Employees conduct themselves, both inside and outside District service, so as to give no
occasion for mistrust of their integrity, impartially or devotion to the best interests of the District
in the public trust which it holds.

B. This Code of Ethics has been adopted. to establish guidelines for high
cthical standards in official conduct by District Directors, and to provide guidance to District
Directors in order to install a high level of public confidence in the Board’s professionalism,
integrity and commitment to the public interest. F urther, this Code of Ethics will serve as a basis
for disciplining those who refuse to abide by the terms of this Policy.

e



2.03. Standards of Conduct.

A All Directors will conduct themselves with decorum, both at public
meetings and in other settings in which he or she may be viewed by the public as acting in an
official capacity. All District Directors and Employees will treat each other, and any member of
the public appearing at any meeting of the Board, with proper courtesy and respect.

B. No Director, Officer or Employee may disclose any confidential
information, including information gained during any executive session of the Board.

C. No Director may engage in any conduct prejudicial to the District or that
reflects discredit upon the Board,

D. All Directors must use care in taking any public position on any issue
pertaining to the business of the District to distinguish between their individual opinions and the
official position of the Board.

2.04. Conflicts of Interest.

A. No Director, Officer, or Employee may transact any business in his or her
official capacity with any person or Business Organization with whom or in which he or she has
any interest, whether direct or indirect, without the prior approval of the Board, after disclosure
and discussion at a posted Board meeting. The District may not transact any business with any
Business Organization in which a District Director has any interest, whether direct or indirect,
without the prior approval of the Board, after proper disclosure and discussion at a posted Board
meeting.

B. No Director, Officer or Employee may represent, directly or indirectly
himself or any private person, Business Organization, group or interest other than the District
before the Board, except in matters of purely public concern and when doing so without
compensation or remuneration.

C. If any Director has a personal pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in any
decision pending before the Board, that Director may not discuss or otherwise participate in the
consideration of the matter, or vote on the matter, but must disclose the nature and extent of his
or her interest in writing prior to any determination of the matter, and abstain from any vote
thereon. This paragraph does not apply to any decision made by the Board affecting the
District’s tax rate, or other fees, charges and rates of the District. .

2.05. Attendance. All Directors and Officers must consistently attend all meetings of
the Board, including all regularly scheduled work sessions, As provided in Section 49.052 of the
Water Code, any Director who misses one-half or more of the regular meetings of the Board
scheduled within a 12-month period may be removed by the unanimous vote of the other
Directors.



ARTICLE 111

INVESTMENT POLICY

3.01. Scope. This Policy applies to all transactions involving the investment assets of
the District.

3.02. Policy. District funds will be invested in compliance with applicable legal
requirements, the guidelines stated in this Policy, each District Investment Strategy, and the
restrictions contained in the District’s bond resolutions. Effective cash management is
recognized as a foundation of this Policy. Notwithstanding the foregoing, investment of District
funds is limited to types of investments set forth on the attached Exhibit “A.”

3.03.  Allowable Maturities. Unless otherwise stated in Exhibit “A.” the maximum
allowable stated maturity of any individual investment may not exceed 180 days and the
maximum dollar-weighted average maturity for pooled fund groups based on the stated maturity
date for the portfolio may not exceed 60 days. Settlement of all transactions, other than
investments in investment pool funds and mutual funds, must be consummated on a delivery
versus payment basis.

3.04. Investment Objectives. The District’s investment portfolio will be planned and
managed to take advantage of investment interest as a source of income from all operating and
capital funds. In addition, the portfolio will be managed in accordance with the covenants of the
District’s bond resolutions, including covenants with respect to arbitrage regulations under the
U.S. Internal Revenue Code. Consideration will be given to the following objectives:

A. Safety of Capital. The primary objective of the District is to ensure the
preservation and safety of principal.

B. Liquidity. The District will maintain sufficient liquidity to ensure the
availability of funds necessary to pay obligations as they become due.

C. Return on Investment. The District will seek to optimize return on
investments within the constraints of safety and liquidity.

D. Standard of Care. The District will seek to ensure that all persons
involved in the investment process act responsibly in the preservation of District capital. District
investments will be made with the exercise of judgment and care, under circumstances then
prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of
their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their
capital as well as the probable income to be derived.

E. Investment Strategies. The District’s Investment Strategies are set forth in
Exhibit “B” attached hereto.



3.05. Investment Officer; Quarterly Report; Monitoring Investments. Purchases and
sales of District investments may only be initiated by an Investment Officer appointed by
resolution of the Board. The District’s Investment Officers will be required to attend training, in
compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act and the Texas Water Code, from an
independent source approved by the Board that includes education in investment contrals,
security rights, strategy rights, market rights, and compliance with the Public Funds Investment
Act. The Board may authorize an Investment Officer to invest and reinvest funds of the District
in accordance with this Policy. The Investment Officers must submit a written report to the
Board on at least a quarterly basis, which sets forth all investment transactions during the
previous quarter and which complies with the requirements of the Public Funds Investment Act.
The Investment Officer shall monitor, on no less than a weekly basis, the credit rating on all
authorized investments in the portfolio based upon independent information from a nationally
recognized rating agency. If any security falls below the minimum rating required by this
Policy, the Investment Officer shall notify the Board of the loss of rating, conditions affecting
the rating and possible loss of principal with liquidation options available, within two weeks
after the loss of the required rating. Upon receipt of such notice, the Board will consider the
liquidation options in accordance with Section 2256.021, Government Code.

3.06. Acknowledgment Required.,

A written copy of this Policy shall be presented to any Business Organization offering to
engage in an investment transaction with the District. For purposes of this Section 3.06,
"Business Organization" means an investment pool or investment management firm under
contract with the District to invest or manage the District’s investment portfolio that has accepted
authority granted by the District under the contract to exercise investment discretion in regard to
the District’s funds. Nothing in this Section relieves the District of the responsibility for
monitoring the investments made by the District to determine that they are in compliance with
this Policy. The Qualified Representative of the Business Organization offering to engage in an
investment transaction with the District entity shall execute a writlen instrument in a form
acceptable to the District and the Business Organization substantially to the effect that the
Business Organization has:

(1) received and reviewed this Policy; and

2) acknowledged that the Business Organization has implemented reasonable
procedures and controls in an effort to preclude investment transactions
conducted between the District and the Business Organization that are not
authorized by this Policy, except to the extent that this authorization:

(A) is dependent on an analysis of the makeup of the District's entire
portfolio;
(B) requires an interpretation of subjective investment standards; or

(C) relates to investment transactions of the entity that are not made
through accounts or other contractual arrangements over which the Business Organization has

-5-



accepted discretionary investment authority.

The District’s Investment Officer may not acquire or otherwise obtain any authorized
investment described in this Policy from a Business Organization that has not delivered to the
District the instrument required by this Section.

A list of brokers selling investments to the District is attached hereto as Exhibit “C.”

3.07.  Collateralization. Funds held at a bank or trust company that are not invested
must be collateralized by collateral securities set forth in the Public Funds Collateral Act, to the
extent not covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), the Federal Savings
and Loan Insurance Corporation (FSLIC), or their successors.

3.08. Review. This Policy and investment performance and security will be reviewed
and evaluated at least annually by the Board, or more frequently upon the request of any
Director. Following its annual review, and if a review is performed more frequently upon
request of a Director, the Board will adopt a written resolution confirming its review of this
Policy and the separate investment strategies adopted by the Board. A compliance audit of
management controls on investments and adherence to this Policy shall be conducted in
conjunction with the District's annual financial audit.

ARTICLE IV

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

4.01.  Accounting Records. The District’s financial records will be prepared on a timely
basis and maintained in an orderly manner, in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principals. These records will be available for public inspection during regular business hours at
the District’s office.

4.02. Audit Requirements,

A. Until such time as the District is required to file an audit under Section
49.191, Texas Water Code, the District will prepare and file either (i) an annual financial
dormancy affidavit under Section 49.197, Water Code, or (i) an annual financial report and
affidavit under Section 49.198, Water Code.

B. At such time as the District is required to comply with Section 49.191,
Texas Water Code, the District’s fiscal accounts and records will be audited annually, at the
expense of the District, by a certified public accountant. District audits will be performed
according to generally accepted auditing standards adopted by the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and any accounting and auditing manuals adopted by the executive director
of the Commission. The District will comply with uniform reporting requirements that use
“Audits of State and Local Governmental Units” as a guide on audit working papers and
“Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.” In addition, the District’s
auditor will review management controls on District investments and the District’s compliance

-6-



with the Policy contained in Article T1T.

C. Within 135 days after the close of the District’s fiscal year, the District
will file a copy of its annua) audit report and the annual filing affidavit prescribed by Section
49.194 of the Water Code with the Executive Director of the Commission. If the Board refuses
to approve the annual audit report, the Board will file a statement with the audit that explains the
reasons for disapproval.

4.03.  Audit Commitiee. Upon the District’s becoming financially active, the Board will
establish an audit committee comprised of one or more Directors and any Employees the Board
deems appropriate, and this committee will conduct, at a minimum, an annual review of the
DistricC’s financial status. The audit committee will monitor variances from the District’s
budget, and make budget recommendations to the Board. The audit committee will also review
the annual District audit, and make recommendations on it to the Board.

4.04. Budget. Upon the District’s becoming financially active, the Board will adopt an
annval budget for use in planning and controlling District costs. This budget will take into
consideration all District revenues, including utility fees, taxes and surcharges, if any, and all
projected District obligations and expenditures. The District manager will provide a comparison
of budgeted expenditures and revenues to actual expenditures and revenues for review on a
monthly basis. The approved budget will be reviewed by the Board at least quarterly and all
necessary revisions to the budget will require approval of a majority vote of the Board.

ARTICLE V

TRAVEL EXPENDITURES AND FEES OF OFFICE

5.01. Fees of Office. A Director is entitled to receive fees of office of not more than
$150 per day for each day a Director actually spends performing the duties of a Director.
“Performing the duties of a Director” means substantive performance of the management or
business of the District, including participation in board and committee meetings and other
activities involving the substantive deliberation of district business and in pertinent educational
programs. The phrase does not include routine or ministerial activities such as the execution of
documents, self-preparation for meetings, or other activities requiring a minimal amount of time,

5.02.  Reimbursement of Expenses. Reimbursement for travel expenditures and other
expenses incurred by a Director upon behalf of the District are subject to approval by the Board.
Any Director desiring reimbursement for expenses must present a verified statement to the

Board, together with all supporting receipts and invoices.

5.03  Conference and Seminar Policy. Directors may attend conferences and meetings
at the District’s expense only if deemed appropriate by the Board. Unless otherwise approved by
the Board, each Director attending a conference or meeting must attend all blocks of educational
sessions in order to qualify for reimbursement. Subject to prior Board approval and compliance
with the other requirements of the Code of Ethics, and except as provided in 5.03, each Director
who attends a conference, business meeting or seminar related to the District business may be

-7-



reimbursed for travel, lodging and meal expenses associated with that atlendance, as follows:

A. Travel Expenses. Transportation costs, including but not limited to,
airfare, car rental, taxi fare and parking incurred while on official District business will be
reimbursed based upon the costs actually incurred by the Director; however, reimbursement for
transportation on a common carrier will be limited to tourist/coach rates. Mileage
reimbursement for transportation by personal automobile will conform to Internal Revenue
Service regulations.

B. Lodging FExpenses. Lodging expenses will be reimbursed based upon
costs actually incurred by the Director and will not exceed the amount of lodging expense
determined to be reasonable and necessary.

«. Meal Expenses. Meal expenses will be limited to the amount determined
to be reasonable and necessary. .

D. Excluded Expenses. Expenses that are of a personal nature or are not
reasonable or necessary to the District business will not be paid or reimbursed by the District.

ARTICLE VI

COMPLAINTS AND PROCEDURES FOR VIOLATIONS

6.01. Complaints. All complaints or allegations of violations of the Code of Ethics
must be made in writing, sworn to before a notary public and filed with the District’s atlorney. A
complaint must describe in detail the act that is complained of, and the specific sections of this
Code alleged to have been violated. A general complaint, lacking detail, will not be sufficient to
invoke the procedures in this section, and anonymous complaints will not be considered.

6.02. Initial Determination. Within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of a complaint,
the District’s attorney will determine if the facts of the complaint, if true, would constitute a
violation of this Code. If the District’s altorney determines that the complaint does not contain
facts that constitute a violation, the District’s attorney will so advise the Board at its next regular
meeting,

6.03. Report lo the Board. If the District’s attorney determines that the complaint
contains facts that, if true, would constitute a violation, the District’s attorney will present a
report to the Board. A majority of the members of the Board not implicated by the complaint
will determine whether the complaint should be considered or rejected.

6.04. Consideration by the Board. To consider a complaint, the Board may convene in
executive session as permitted by the Texas Open Meetings Act. The Board member implicated
by the complaint will have the right to a full and complete hearing, with the right to call
witnesses and present evidence. Any final action, decision or vote will be made in open meeting.

-8-



6.05. Reprimand. The failure of a Director to comply with the provisions of the Code
will constitute grounds for disciplinary action, which may include but not necessarily be limited
to reprimand, and if allowed by law, removal, as deemed appropriate by the other members of
the Board.

ARTICLE VII

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES; BONDS

7.01.  Selection. Consultants and employees retained to provide professional services to
the District, including, but not limited to, legal, engineering, management, accounting and tax
collection services, will be selected based upon their qualifications and by majority vote of the
Board. In selecting attorneys, engineers, auditors, financial advisors or other professional
consultants, the District will follow the procedures required by the Professional Services
Procurement Act.

7.02. Bond. The Board will require any Employee who handles District funds to
provide a bond, in an amount determined by the Board, in accordance with the requirements of
Section 49.057(¢) of the Water Code.

ADOPTED this 17" day of July, 2018.

REUNION RANCH WATER CONTROL
AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

By: ;JtzJ"éL‘M_ 7(5"4"“”""“—*

Nhﬂmn Neese, Pilesident
Board of Directors

ATTEST:




EXHIBIT “A”
AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

The following obligations of governmental entities and obligations guaranteed by
governmental entities are allowed:

a. Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities;
b. Direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities;
c. With prior approval of the Board, collateralized mortgage obligations directly

issued by the federal government, the underlying security for which is guaranteed
by the United States with certain exceptions set forth in the Public Funds
Investment Act;

d, Other obligations the principal and interest of which are unconditionally
guaranteed or insured by, or backed by the full faith and credit of the United
States or its agencies and instrumentalities, including obligations that are fully
guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or by the full
faith and credit of the United States; and

€. With prior approval of the Board, obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities
and other political subdivisions having not less than an “A” rating from a
nationally recognized investment rating firm.

Certificates of deposit issued by a bank or savings and loan association doing business in
Texas guaranteed by the FDIC or the obligations set forth above in 1.

With prior approval of the Board, repurchase agreements with a defined termination date,
that are secured by a combination of cash and the obligations set forth in 1, require the
securities being purchased or cash held to be pledged to the District, held in the District’s
name or with a third party selected and approved by the District and are placed through a
primary government securities dealer or a financial institution doing business in Texas.

With prior approval of the Board, bankers’ acceptance with a stated maturity of 270 days
or less that will be liquidated in full at maturity, is eligible for collateral for borrowing
from a Federal Reserve Bank, is accepted by a bank organized and existing under the
laws of the United States or any state, if the short-term obligations of the bank, or of a
bank holding company of which the bank is the largest subsidiary, are rated not less than
A-1 or P-1 or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized credit rating
agency and meets other credit requirements established by the Board.

-10-



With prior approval of the Board, commercial paper with a stated maturity of 270 days or
less, rated not less than A-1 or P-1 or an equivalent rating by at least two nationally
recognized credit rating agencies; or one nationally recognized credit rating agency and is
fully secured by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a bank organized and existing
under the laws of the United States or any state and meeting other credit requirements
established by the Board.

With prior approval of the Board, money market mutual funds that are no-load and: (a)
are registered with and regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™);
(b) have provided the District with a prospectus and other information required by the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the Investment Company Act of 1940; (c) have a
dollar-weighted average stated maturity of 90 days of fewer; and (d) have an investment
objective of maintaining a stable net asset value of $1 per share.

Other types of mutual funds which are no-load and: (a) are registered with the SEC; (b)
have an average weighted maturity of less than 2 years; (c) arc invested exclusively in
obligations approved by the Public Funds Investment Act; (d) have a “AAA” rating; and
(e) mcet certain requirements of investment pools, as set forth in the Public Funds
Investment Act.

Public funds investment pool which meets the criteria as set forth in the Public Funds

Investment Act, maintains a “AAA” rating, and have an investment objective of
maintaining a stable net asset value of $1 per share.

-11-



EXHIBIT “B”

INVESTMENT STRATEGIES

Investment Strategies in order of priority:

A.

B.

C.

Investment requirements by fund

1.

Operafing Funds. The District will maintain funds in the operating checking
account at its depository bank, TexPool or any qualified money market fund to
cover approximately two (2) months of operating needs. The remaining operating
funds will be invested in acceptable investments to meet the operating
requirements of the District as determined by the annual operating budget adopted
by the Board, not to exceed a maximum maturity of one year.

Tax Collections. Tax collections will be deposited into the District’s tax account
at its depository bank. The balance will be checked monthly, except during
December and January, when the balance will be checked on a weekly basis, Tax
receipts will be allocated according to the Order Levying Taxes, then-transferred
to the operating and debt service accounts.

Debt Service Funds. The District will maintain an approximate $1,000 balance in
the debt service account at its depository bank. This balance will cover any
minimal debt service expenses that may arise. The remaining funds will be
invested to mature three (3) to seven (7) days prior to the next bond payment
dates.

Construction Funds. The District will maintain an approximate $3,000 balance in
the construction account at its depository bank. The remaining construction funds
will be invested in acceptable investments not to exceed a maximum maturity of
one (1) year. Escrowed construction moneys will be maintained in a separate
interest-bearing account(s).

Suitability. The District’s Investment Officers must understand the District’s financial
requirements. Appropriate investments will be made to meet the needs of the District. TexPool
or a qualified money market fund will be considered acceptable investments if approved by the
District’s Investment Officers in accordance with the strategies.

Preservation of Capital. A safe investment will allow the District to recover every

dollar invested.

D.

Liquidity. The District’s Investment Officers must invest in securities that are easily and

rapidly converted into cash without a substantial loss of value.

-12-



E. Investment Marketability Requirements. All investments must be “marketable” in
case the need arises to liquidate an investment before maturity.

F. Maximum Maturities. To the extent possible, the District will match its investments
with anticipated cash flow requirements. As required by the Public Funds Investment Act and
the District’s Financial Investment Policy, certain investments will have maturity limitations.

G. Diversification. There will be no defined level of investment diversification as long as
all funds of the District are invested in accordance with these strategies.

H. Yield. District funds must be invested to obtain the maximum yield for each time frame
taking into consideration the priority of preservation and safety of the principal and the liquidity
of the investment.

L Annual Review of Investment Strategies. The Board will review these strategies at
least annually. Any changes deemed necessary by the Board at the time of each review will be
reflected in an amendment to these strategies.

-13-



District Depository:

1\ReunionRangh\code-cthics2018
7/12/18

EXHIBIT “C”

LIST OF BROKERS

-14-

Phone:

Facsimile:

Phone:

Facsimile:




Jeniffer Concienne

=————=——
From: Michael Moyer <MMoyer@taylormorrison.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 8, 2021 2:29 PM
To: Jeniffer Concienne
Cc: Michael Slack
Subject: FW: REUNION RANCH WCID - PROPOSED AGENDA
Jeniffer,

Below are the latest sales, closing and ASP metrics in Reunion Ranch for next weeks meeting.

7/8/2021
PTD Homes Sold PTD Homes Closed Avg Sales Price
RR60 134 134 S 483,281
RR70 207 201 S 537,216
RR80 91 86 S 622,584
RRS0 52 52 S 537,729
Total 484 473 S 538,390

Michael Moyer
Land Development Director

T +15125322111 MMoyer@taylormorrison.com

www.taylormorrison.com

kL

This message may contain contic
should not distribute or copy this

formation and is intended only for the named addressee. If you are not the named addressee you
il ifyou have received this e-inail by mistake piease delete it front your system

From: Jeniffer Concienne <jconcienne @wfaustin.com>

Sent: Thursday, July 8, 2021 9:06:36 AM

To: Dennis Daniel <dbdutx@gmail.com>; Nathan Neese (Nathan@c3devco.com) <Nathan@c3devco.com>; Tom Rogers
<teefortwo@sbcglobal.net>; Terri Sohn <terri.sohn@gmail.com>; Ron Meyer <rfmtx88 @outlook.com>

Cc: Michael Slack <MSlack@taylormorrison.com>; Michael Moyer <MMoyer@taylormorrison.com>; Frank Krasovec
<frank@norwoodinvestments.com>; Carol Stephenson <carol@norwoodinvestments.com>; Pamela Brewer
<pbrewer@murfee.com>; Kristi Hester (Kristi.Hester@Inframark.com) <Kristi.Hester@Inframark.com>; Jesse Kennis
<jesse.kennis@inframark.com>; Allen Douthitt <allen@bottdouthitt.com>; Jessica Benson <jessica@hottdouthitt.com>;

1



Jeniffer Concienne

=
From: Frank Krasovec <frank@norwoodinvestments.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 8, 2021 10:38 AM
To: Jeniffer Concienne
Subject: RE: REUNION RANCH WCID - PROPOSED AGENDA

Jeniffer....not sure | will make the call.

Heyl took down 3 more lots. 6 left and expect these to be taken down this year. Frank

From: Jeniffer Concienne <jconcienne @wfaustin.com>

Sent: Thursday, July 8, 2021 8:07 AM

To: Dennis Daniel <dbdutx@gmail.com>; Nathan Neese (Nathan@c3devco.com) <Nathan@c3devco.com>; Tom Rogers
<teefortwo@sbcglobal.net>; Terri Sohn <terri.sohn@gmail.com>; Ron Meyer <rfmtx88@outlook.com>

Cc: Michael Slack (MSlack@taylormorrison.com) <MSlack@taylormorrison.com>; Mike Moyer
(MMoyer@taylormorrison.com) <MMoyer@taylormorrison.com>; Frank Krasovec <frank@norwoodinvestments.com>;
Carol Stephenson <carol@norwoodinvestments.com>; Pamela Brewer <pbrewer@murfee.com>; Kristi Hester
(Kristi.Hester@Inframark.com) <Kristi.Hester@Inframark.com>; Jesse Kennis <jesse.kennis@inframark.com>; Allen
Douthitt <allen@bottdouthitt.com>; Jessica Benson <jessica@bottdouthitt.com>; Garry Kimball <garry@spfmuni.com>;
Diane Duran (dduran@taylormorrison.com) <dduran@taylormorrison.com>; Keyes, Ronja
<ronja.keyes@inframark.com>; George Murfee <gmurfee@murfee.com>; Andrea Wyatt <awyatt@murfee.com>
Subject: REUNION RANCH WCID - PROPOSED AGENDA

Dear All,

Please find attached the proposed Agenda for the July 20" board meeting. Please provide me with any
comments by noon on July 14th, along with any documentation you wish to be included in the agenda package.

Please note that this meeting will be held by remote access only through Zoom.

Also, please confirm your attendance so that we will be sure to secure a quorum.

Thank you.

Jeniffer Concienne

Legal Assistant

Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC

Attorneys at Law

12912 Hill Country Blvd., Suite F-232
Austin, Texas 78738

Ph: (512) 476-6604

Fx: (512) 469-9148
jconcienne@wfaustin.com

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail transmission (and/or the attachments accompanying it} may contain confidential information
belonging to the sender which is protected by the attorney-client privilege. The information is intended only for the use of the
intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or the
taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited. Any unauthorized interception of this
transmission is illegal under the law. If you have received this transmission in error, please promptly notify the sender by reply e-
mail, and then destroy all copies of the transmission.



Murfee €ngineering Company

July 7t, 2021

Mr. Dennis Daniel, President

and Board of Directors

Reunion Ranch WCID

c/o Willatt & Flickinger

12912 Hill Country Blvd., Suite F-232
Austin, Texas 78738

Mr. Mike Moyer

Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc.
11200 Lakeline Blvd

Suite 105A

Austin, Texas 78717

Re: Reunion Ranch WWTP Expansion — Recommendation for Pay Application No. 7 from
Excel Construction Services, LLC.

Mr. Daniel & Reunion Ranch WCID Board, Mr. Moyer:

Attached please find Pay Application No. 7 in the amount of $360,918.00 from Excel
Construction Services, LLC for work performed through June 30%™, 2021, on the above-
referenced project. | have reviewed the attached documentation for compliance with the
Contract Documents, concur with the items and quantities, and therefore recommend approval
and payment of Pay Application No. 7 in the amount of $360,918.00. If you have any questions
or if you would like any additional information, please contact me at your convenience.

Sincerely,

.*’f; ,‘_'.:,_'{'?i_rj! .'!.;:»./;” /"(

Andrea Wyatt, P.E.
Attachments: Pay Application No. 7

cC: Bill Flickinger — Willatt & Flickinger
George Murfee, P.E.
Evan Parker, E.I.T.
MEC File No. 12002.108

W:\Reunion Ranch WCID\Facilities\Wastewater\WWTP A\Expansion\Construction Admin\Pay App\PA 007

1101 Copital of Texas Highwaoy South « Building D, Suite 110 «Austin, Texas 78746 - 512/327-9204 - TBPE {353



s1eq pieog qiDmyy
aeq UOSLIOW JojAe |
sjeq Auedwod Buuesuibuy espnpy
‘2 AIn
120z ‘L Ainr eroby \ﬁ,
d3aNINWOOTN 81| 00'816'09¢  $|  JOINIWAVA

019£802Z1 Q1 AlgioN
¥Z0Z-10-80 §84(6xX3 "WWOD T 1y
sexs] j0 8181 'oNand Em«oz“ B
aNyg3g NIUW

ALAT
30

.... Zas® 93

A}
oo

h\_\
%,

'o;-‘

‘
=
A
S

"mn

0 B
:u_w. W

31VA ® IHNLYNDIS (dNVLS Axe O\

/A5 ARl

e

] :Ag

$1175691uag uondnIjsuog |89x3

‘SNP MOU S| LiaJay umoys Juswiied Juauns Jeyl pue ‘IsumQ ayj woy

paalaoal sjualuAed pue panssi aiam JUSWARY Joj SSIESINSY) ShoiAsld

YOIUM 1OJ SIOAA o) Jojarijuc?) ou} Aq ped usaq SAEY SJUNCLUE jje JBU]
'SIUSWNOO( WENUOD 84} Yiim 2oUBPIooIE LI pIjsidwoo ueeq sey uswizd 1o}
uoneoyddy st} Aq pausaco YOA B4} JRI[eq PUE UCHBLLIO ‘aBpajmouy

S I0J9BJIUOD BLf} $O 1S9q ayl 0] Jey) ssuIS2 JOJ0BUOD paubisiapun su)

‘NOLLYOIHLLHAD SHOLIVHINGD

02 Aq sbueyn 19N

|aBeuiejay Suipnjoul)

0r'GZe'Lro’L $ HSINIS O1 IONVYTVE "6 = - ¢ |svLolans

00°'8L6'09¢E ¢ NOILYDITddY SIHL 3Na LNNOWY '8

09'952'2F0'C ¢ SLNINAVd SNOIAINd SSIT "2

09'vL'EOF'Z g 31va Ol 319191713 LNNOWY '3
6L g | %01 @ AOVYNIVLIN 'S

00'P6L'029' $ 31vd OL a3HOLS ® QILIF1dWOD TVIOL P

| 00°000°SPi'S $ 31va OL WNS LOVHINOD ¢ suononpag suoRIppY penciddy a1eQ “oN

- $ SYIAYO IONVHO A IONVHO L3N 2 SH3AA0 IDNVHO AINOHdLY

00°000'StPb'E 8 WNS LOVHINOD TYNIDINO L AHMYININNS H3AHO IONVHO

INIJWAVd 804 NOILVYIITddY

818 X1 ‘unsny

AemyBiH sexa] jo [ended 1oLl
"3°d #efn esipuy

ou ‘Auedwo) Bupaau)bug ssunpy

HIINIONT ‘BIA

9v98/ sexa] ‘lapuea
09Z¢ x0d Od
IIBY2HA PEYS

0711 ‘sevIAIaS UORoNNSUSY) [89XT

FOLIVYULINOD ‘Wwoig

B9/8/ SEX®3] ‘URsSnNy

00} "91S SlID opetoly | SLpoL

JsAop A uRy

dIAMW Youey uoiunay
¥INMO (ol

AYVHIAINS

dLMAM Youey uoiunay

poliad :o:mo__na(
:*ON uonedddy

L202 ‘0 aunp miyj
{2) uaaag

ANIFWAVYL 404 FLYIIHILHYTO
NV NOILVYIITddY S, HOLIVHLNOD




00008 $| 00009 $| - $ %001 00'000'9 S| - $] = $ | 00000'9 $ | 000009 S ped Jsmoig 8L
00°000'0€ $| - $ | 00°000'08 $ %0 - $| - $| - $| - $ | 00°000°0€ S adid punoio anoqy v
00°002'8 $| 000002°L  $| 00005 $ %29 00°000'24 $| - $ | 00°000'ZL $| - $ | 00°005°61L S sdwng weny3 9L,
00'009'SY $| 00009'sy $| - $ %00} 00'000'95¥ $| - $| - $ | 00°000'9SY $ | 00000951 S uswdinb3 yas Sl'L
00°000'24 $| - $| 0000021 $ %0 > $| - $| - $4 = ¢ | 00'000°CT S Jswdinb3 Yag bunsix3 jeg 2%
00°006'¢ $ | 00006 $ | 00°000' $ %S.L 00°000'6 $| - $ | 00°000'6 g - ¢ | 00°000°ZT S uawdinb3 YGS MaN 128 el
00°0S¥'E $| 000s¥'L  $| 000002 $ %88 00°00G'v) $| - $ | 00°00S'Y $ | 00000'0L ¢ | 00°00S9T S [E19N OSIN 42
00'000'9 $] - $ | 00°000'9 $ %0 - gl - $| - $| - $ | 00°0009 $ adid 1200 LyL
00002’} $| ooco0z't $| - $ %001 00°000'21 $| - S| = $ | o0000'ZL $ | 00°000°CT S IeAA JE0] Joualy| (WA
00°002'L $ | oo00Z'L $| - $ %00} 00°000'¢} $] - $ 00°000'2L ¢ | 00°000°CT S JIEM J80J Jouaxg 60°L
00002t $| ooooz'y $| - $ %001 00°000°Z¥ $| - $ 00°000'2¥ $ | 00°000CY S IELIIEN Jeqsy 80°L
00°000°¢ $| oooo0's  $| - $ %001 00°000'0¢ $| - $ 00°000'0€ $ | 00°000°0€ S lpioeg 918iouo0dy L0724
00°002't2 $| ooooz've $| - $ %001 00°000'2¥2 $| - $ 00°000°2¥2 $ | 0000022 S ES SIIEM 898|d PUE JEGSY ‘ULICS 90°L
00'00S'2Z1 $ | oo0os'zL $| - $ %001 00°000'G2L $| - $ 00'000°6ZL ¢ | 00°000°9ZT S yds qe|s 82e|d pue Jeqay "UuoJ Q0L
00009 $ | 00°009 $| - $| %00, | 000009 $] - $ 00°000'9 $ | 00°000'9 S Aodxa pue g ¥0'/
00°00¢€ $ | 0000 $| - $ %00} 00'000°¢ $| - $ 00'000'€ $ | 00000 S apeibgng esedald ueato €0°L
00052 $ | 00052 $| - $| %00} |0000S'C $| - $ 000052 $ | 00°005°C $ aury ssedAg onoway T0L
00°008'8 $ | 00008'8 $| - $ %001 00°000'88 $| - $ 00°000'88 ¢ | 00°000°88 S uoReAgIx3 L0°L
SILTNOVL ¥3IMOT9 ANV NISVE NOILYNIY I
s $i - $1 - $
00°000'9 $| 00000z $] 00000 $ %ER 00°000°0Z $l = $ | 00°000'02 s8] - $ | 00°0007C S S2AIBA Jue adid abueld - INeA BAlEA GL'9
00°00¥ $ | 00°00% $| - $ %00} 00°000't $] - $ | 00000V $] - 3| 00°000Y S JOBG - INBA BA[BA L9
00°00¢ $ | 0000¢ $]| - $ %00+ 00°000'€ $| - $ | o0000'e $| - $ | 00°000°E S BUREOD 218IUOT - INBA SAIBA €19
00°009'L $| 00009’ $| - $| %00t |00°000'9L $| - $ | 00'000'91 $] - $ | 00°000°9T $ JNBA S1I0UCY 158031d - INBA BAEA [4X:]
00°05¢ $ | 00'0sz $| - $ %004 00°005'C $| - $ | 000052 $] - $ | 000057 $ adid punoiBispun - INeA 3AlRA L9
00°000'22 $| oo000'r  $| 00000°€Z $ %EY 00°000'0% $| - $ | 00°000°0% $| - $ | 00°000°€9 ) adid - uonelsy ]
00°000°Z} $ | 00000+ $| 00000l $ %G1 00'000'0F $| - $ | 00°000'0F 3| - ¢ | 00°000°€S S duwind s|jqIssewgns - uonesy 609
00'00.'8 $| 00002't ¢ | 00°00S'S $ %G8 00'000°2¢ $| - $ | 00°000'2¢ $| - ¢ | 00°005'LE S JuaWdinb3 [0JU0Y J0pO - UoKBISYI] 80'9
00'00S'LE $ | 0000S'9  $| 00000'S2 $ %L 00°000's9 $| - $| - $ | 00°000'S9 $ | 00°000'06 S UBaI0G JEAIUSA - LUOREISIT 09
0070081 $| oo008'L $| - $ %001 00'000°8L sl - $ | 00000'81L $| - $ | 00°000'8T S |pjoeg - uohEsY 209
00°00% $ | 00'00v $| - $ %001 00°000'v $| - $ | 00°000'% $] - $| 00°000Y S BuneoD 9)215U07) - UOKEISHI S0'9
00°002'cl $| ooooz'y $| 000006 $ %C8 00°000'Zy $| - $| - $ | 00°000'2t $| 00°000'TS S 14D - uoneisyn 0’9
00°002't $| oooozy $| - $| %00L | 00000k $| - $| - $ | 00°000'2H $ | 00°000°2Y S S1210U0) 1SE0BI] - UONEISUIT £0'9
00°009 $ | 00009 $1 - $ %00} 00°000°9 $1 - $ 00°000°9 ¢ | 00°000°9 S 114 10918 - UonEsyI] 209
00'001L'2 $| ooooL'2. $| - $ %00} 00'000°L2 $| - $ 00°000'LL $| 00°000TL S UONeABIXT - UOEISYI 10'9
NOLLYLS 1417 IN3N14NI | 0079
00°000'C $] - $ | 00'000'2 $ %0 - $| - $] - $i| = $ | 00°000°C $ I1Red £0°S
00°000'0} $| - $ | oo'coo'ol $ %0 - S| - S| - $| - $ | 0000001 S UonelEsyl c0's
00'002'6 $ | 00002 $ | 00°000'6 $ %81 00°000'2 s - $ 0070002 ¢ | 00°000°TT S adid uojeAeox3 108
3NIT MM DNILSIX3 OL ONILOINNOD ONIdid SS300¥d |  00°S
00°005'L $| ooo0s't  $| - $ %004 00°000°SY S| - $ 00°000°GL $ | 00°000'G1L $ ue|d Ajojeg youall 14
00°00¢ $ | 00°00E $] - $ %001 00°000°€ $| - $ | 00°00S°L $ | 00°00S°t $ | 00000 $ ue|d uohReAedx3 €
00°0S¢ $ | ooose $| - $ %001 00°005°¢ $] - $ 00°00S°€ $100005°E $ dddMS [4
00°000'ZL $| 00000°2L S| - $ %001 00°000°0LL $| - $] - $ | 00°000°04} $| 00°000°0LL $ adueinsu| R ‘spuog ‘uonezijiqopy l
Bujuleway (%) ajeq ot abeioig u) pouad ajewWlSy
souejeg aoueleg ysiui4 sjo1dwon paio}g puy Buiwewsy siyL SnoInalg Woldg anjeA NIOM "ON
lejoL abeuiejay o] sauejeg jusdiad | pejeidwon ol | sieusiew pajo|dwon HIopM paihpayoss J0 uonduosaqg way
L2oz/0g/9 -31vQA NOLLVOITddVY
L ON NOLLYDOINddV
aunp :aol¥3d Avd

FLIVINILST SSTFHO0Yd S.401LIVHINOD

dLMM Youey uotunay




00ZEL L€ $| - $ | 00zel'Le $ %0 - $| - $| - $| - $| 00°TET LE S leysul dinb3 jeauoal3 / Jesbuoums | go'gl
00°052'€ ¢ | o005z ¢ | 00'00s'z $ %G/ 00°00S'2 g - $| - ¢$ | 000052 ¢ | 00°000°0T S J0JONPUOY PUNCI SUEGIING 9313 1§ Bupunoio | ey
00°€18'0¢ $| - $ | 00°€L8'0E $ %0 2 $| - $| - $| - $ | 00'€T8'0E S uoneuLLR] 3 UOREIRISU| 3 | gO'ElL
00'706'42 $| oo'zol's  $| 00zog'tz $ %¥L 00°020°L9 s - $ | 00°025'9¢ $ | 00-00s'v2 ¢ | 00°zZ8e8 S Unpuod pasodx3 / puncio enody | zogl
00°ZYL'6L $| oo0o¥'vL S| 00THL'Y $ %.6 00°000'7bL $| - $ | 00°000°04 $ | 00"000'vEL ¢ | 00 ZvL'8YT S Inpuod ORI ON | 10°gL
SWILSAS ¥aMod Vo103 1a| ¢
00°002'L $| o000z’ S| - $| %00L |00°000ZL g - $ | 00°000'9 $ | 00°000'9 $ | 00°000°2T S lleam 1200 YAl
00°00€'L $| ooooe't  $| - $| %00L |00000EL $| - $ | 00"000°€L $| - $ | 00'000°€T S aInjonig e vzl
0000002 $| - $ | 000000z $ %0 - $| - $| - $| - ¢ | 0000002 S Buidid puno.b ancgy £zl
00°000'Z1 $| 00'000zL $| - $| %00k | 000000ZL $| - g - $ | oo000'02L ¢ | 00°000°02ZT S 8Be101g USNYT IIEM 0BId Pue 1eqay ‘Lo zzL
00°005'9 $| oo00s's  §| - $| %00. |00000G9 s - $ 00°000'69 $ | 00°000°99 S abeI0)5 JUSNYST qelS 208ld PUE Jeqay ‘Lo 1zl
NISYE 39VH0LS ININT443 FAR
00°000'01 $| - $ | 0000001 $ %0 - $| - $| - $| - $ | 00°000°0T S Budid puncibanoqy | zp |
00°000'0¢ $| - $ | 00°000'0€ $ %0 = $| - $| - $] - $ | 00°000°0€ S uawdinb3 Bupsixz owsg [N
SNOILYIIJIQOW NISVYS 39YY04S 39an1S tl
00°000°0L $| - $ | 00700001 $ %0 = $| - $| - $| - ¢ | 00°000°0T S [euSjE oseg volL
00°000'0€¢ g - $ | 0o'000'0£Z $ %0 - $| - $| - $| - $ | 00°000°0€C S wswdinb3 Buusiemaq €0t
00°000'0L $| - $ | oo'o00'0L $ %0 - $| - $| - $| - $| 00°000°0T S adid punoiBiepun zZoL
00°000'G $1 - $ | oo000‘s $ %0 - $| - 8| - $| - $ | 00°000°S S ge|S 828|d Jnod ‘uuog L'0L
LININAINDI ONI¥IALYMIA 30aN1S (L]}
s $| - $| - $
00°000°€ $| - $ | oo000' $ %0 = $| - $| - $| - $ | 00°000°€ S BTN [E101 86
00°000'2¥ $| - $ | 00°000'2Y $ %0 - S| - $| - $| - $ | 00°000°CY S adid punois snoqy 1’6
007002} $| o000zt $| - $| %o00L |000002L $| - $| - $ | 00°000°ZL $ | 000000°ZT S lleA 1800 96
007009 $ | 00009 $| - $| %00L |000009 $| - $| - $ | 00°000'9 $ | 000009 S aInnAS [Iped 56
00°005"/ $| 00005z $| - $ %001 00°000'. $| - $ 00°000'G. $ | 00°000°SL S 800 SlieMm 82B|d pue Jeqay 'uuo4 ¥'6
00°005't $| oooos'y  $| - $| %00k |o00000SH g - $ 00°000'SY $ | 00°000°SY S §00 Ge|S 998|g Pue gy 'uuoy 6
00°002 $ | 00004 $] - $ %00 00°000°2 $f_= $| - $ | 00000'L $ | 00°000°L S AKodxa pue jlug 6
00°005 $ | 00°00S $| - $| %00L |00000°S $| - $| - $ | 00°000'G $ | 00°000°S S UOEABOX] L'6
NISVYE LOVLINOD ININOTHD 6
00700012 $| - $| 00°000°L2 $ %0 = g - $| - $| - $| 00°000'TT S adid punol9 aroqy 5'g
00°009'9 $ | 00009 $ | 00°000'9 $ %05 00°000'9 $| - $ | 00°000'9 $| - $ | 00°000°CT S Juawdinb3 jieysul v'8
00°000'22 $| oo000'z2 $| - $| %00, | 00000022 A E $ | 00°000°0¢ $ | 00°000'061 $ | 00°000°027 S wawdinb3 Jalid cg
00°006 $ | 00°006 $| - $] %00+ |00000'6 $ - $ | 00005y $ | 00005y $ | 00°000°6 S qeIS 398|d Jnod ‘uliog z8
0000 $ | 0o-00g $| - $| %00L |00000€ $| - $ 00°000'€ $ | 00°000°€ S uogeAeX3 1’8
3L IN3NT443 8
00°000'S $] - $ | 00°000's $ %0 - g - g| - $| - ¢ | 00'000°s S wawdinb3 bugsix3 owag 6L°L
(%) ajeq ol abeioig uj pouad jewSsy
asuejeg aouejeg ysiui4 adwon pailols puy Bujuieway siylL SNholAald woly anjep MIOAA ‘oN
jejol abeuieyoy o} aosuejeg jJuaslad pajejdwo) |eyo s|eld1e paja|dwon Ydopn pajnpayss jo uondussag way
1202/0€/9 :31vd NOLLYOIddY
L oN NOILYOINddY
aunp :goIy3ad Avd dLMM Ydouey uolunay

JLVWILST SSTHO0Hd S.{O0LIVHINOD




0v'se8'Ly0'L ¢ |overozoz  $| 00'908'v.Z $ %8L 00161°0/92 $ - $100°020°LOY $ | 00vLL'692'C $ | 00°000°SHY'E $ STVIOL LOVHLINOD TVYNIDRIO
ks $| - sl _= $
- $f - $] - $
0¥'292 $| ov'z92 s - $| %00+ |00vi9C sl - $ 00'%49'C $|00vL9C $ OVAH | 209}
00°929'S 8| - $ | 00'928's $ %0 - 5 i $ - $ | 00'928's 3 uone|nsuf buiping | 1091
ONITTING ISNOH dWNd 3aviodn 00’91
= $| - sy = $
00°005'S $| - $ | 00°005'E $ %0 - $| - $ = $ | 00°00S°E S [eua1E N OSIN zZ0'sl
00°000'€ $| - $ | 00'000°E $ %0 - $| - $ s $ | 00°000°€ ) sdwng Jaem lueid 10'GY
WILSAS H31VYM LNV1d Sl
F $] - $| - $
00°000'S $] - $ | 00°000°s $ %0 - 1 - $| - $| - $ | 00°000°S S PPIS 3A0W eyl
00052'8 $| 00052 $| 00°005'2 $ %05 00°005'L $] - $] - $ | 00°005°Z $ | 00°000°ST $ Buidid puno. eroqy zvl
00°000°2 $| 00000z $| - $| %00+ |00°000°02 $| - $l - $ | 00°000'02 $ | 00°000°0T S qe|S 808|d PUB Jeqay ‘U0 [
QRIS ¥l ¥ IS dWNd SAAVS ININT4STOLSAOW | L
00°000'S $| - $ | 00000°'s $ %0 - s - $ = $ | 00°000°S $ SIenuUB WBO | ¢ gL
00°000'S gl - $ | 00°000'G $ %0 = sl - $ - ¢ | 00°000°S S dn LEYS voneswInysu| / 1B9UR3IS | Z|'gl
00'992'0% $| 00'529'4L $| 0016882 $ %08 00°0S29L ) $| - $ | 0005.'9¢ $| 00°000°08 $ | 00°TYE'SYT ) o% | L1l
00°005'2 $| - $ | 0070052 $ %0 s $| - $ - $ | 00°00S°L S 10qeT 7 [eUSIEN JOlBIBURY | g
0062t $| oosey  §| - $| %00L |000SLZY $| - $ 100082 $| - $ | 0005L'TY S Jswdinb3 Jojessus) | go'gl
00°005'1S $| - $ | 00°005'LS $ %0 - $] - $ = $ | 00°005°TS S logen s WO | gorgl
00°00L'% $ | 00002 $ | 00°006 $ %69 000002 $| - $| - $ | 00°000°2 $| 00°006°C S leusie samx U6 | /0g)
00°00¥'2 $ | 00'006 $ | 00°00S'} $ %98 00'000'6 $| - $ [ 00"000'6 $| - $ | 00°005°0T S dinb3 jeouoal3 / sesbyoums | gorg),
Buiureway (%) ajeqg ol abeJoig uj pouad BTN CE]
aosuejeg aouejeg ysiui4 ajajdwon palojg puy Bujuieway Syl SNOIABId WOl anjep PILTYY ‘ON
jelo] abeulejay 0] ajuejeg juasiad pejsidwo) |ejo) s|eusajeiy palajdwos JIopn pajnpayss Jo uonduoasaq woy)
120Z/0€/9 :31va NOILYOINddY
L ON NOLLYOIddY
aunp :QoI¥3d Avd dLMM Youey uolunay

FIVWILSI SSFHO0dd S, HOLIVHINOD




CONTRACTOR AFFIDAVIT OF BILLS PAID AND RELEASE OF LIENS

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSONS§

Owner: Tavlor Morrison of Texas. Inc.

Affiant: Excel Construction Services, LLC

Project Description: Reunion Ranch Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion

In order to induce the Owner to make Progress Payment #7 to Affiant for work performed on the
above-described project, the Affiant states, under oath, as follows:

WAIVER AND RELEASE

Affiant acknowledges and certifies that it has been paid in full for all labor and materials provided
to the above-noted construction project. Affiant, and all of his or its agents, employees,
successors, assigns, subsidiaries, and legal representatives, will and do hereby waive and release
all Mechanic's liens, or similar lien rights, which have or might arise as a result of the Affiant's or
Affiant's agents' or employees' providing labor and materials to the above-noted project.

ALL BILLS PAID

Affiant warrants, represents, and certifies that it has paid all laborers, subcontractors,
materialmen, and all other persons or parties who have provided labor or materials through, for,
or on behalf of the Affiant to the above-noted construction project, and Affiant is not aware of
any claim for payment or lien by such person or party who has furnished Work on the project
through or under Affiant.

Executed ' $360.918.00
Contractor Name; Excel Construction Services. LLC Y
By:  Chad Mitchell N o -

Title: _____ProjectMapagers

S:jscribed and sworn jp before me under my official seal of office this 7 day of
J 1,20 é .

AN lim,

e KAREN BERND

%% Notary Public, State of Texas
‘&"‘ = Comm, Explres 08-01-2024

o,

Iy,
-
si

i:gu

\\“'

Notary ID 12053510

f.m W \\\\




MURFEE ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

Texas Registered Firm No. F-353

1101 Capital of Texas Hwy., South, Bldg, D
Austin, Texas 78746

(512) 327-9204

M E M OR A ND UM

DATE:  July 12, 2021

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS — REUNION RANCH WCID
FROM: George Murfee, P.E.

RE: Engineer’s Report — July 2021

cC: Mike Moyer - Taylor Morrison
Bili Flickinger — Willatt & Flickinger

MEC File No.: 12002.110

Wastewater Flows and Projections

Attached is an updated figure tracking wastewater flows to the existing WWTP vs. projections and
permit milestones.

WWTP Expansion

The contractor has installed the bridge and equipment for the new SBR basin. Piping to the new filter as
well as the piping from the filter to the chlorine contact basin has been installed. Some of the piping that
leads to and from the lift station has also been completed. The electrical subcontractor is working on
grouting the duct bank at the northeast corner of the site. The contractor plans to finish up the tie-in for
the SADDS pump as well as start the lift station welding within the next two weeks. MEC has
coordinated with Inframark to optimize the plant pump and haul services.

210 Conversion

MEC is currently working on flow rate and head loss data to the existing irrigation system to specify an
appropriate sized effluent irrigation pump. These calculations will help provide some data needed for
the LCRA grant application due in September.

Page 1of1



AN T = dWOH 35 T) s3]

(an1/pd3 g0t

YILoW

vZ-inr £C-1BN 110 oz-unf 61-God LT-d3s 9t1-Aey ¥1-92¢@ £1-8ny
¢] o]
05
— — ‘L.G\. T00
00T A {len1oe) mo|4 adesany fcos_-m\.\y\
Nt
J l\.\\ 09 = 98eIdAY 0Z0T
0ST 4—— S — e —— _— g =4SN ST e e 700
/ L'8 = 98eJaAy 6TOT
\a\ 8'€ = 98e19Ay 8T0C
£'G = 98RIAAY £TOT 2
— NS [/ = 98eJaAy 9T0T ._mlw.
§'Z = 98eJaAY STOT =
't = 33eJaAY $10T .
{Yauow 1ad suoR>3UU0I) YiMoJiDH UoIPIUU0) €00 ,ml_._
0S¢ A —
<
\ | o
'/ 5U011931102 W1SAS J3ISIA =
e 4 500
II.Ill'lllllell'l.ll.ll'l'lllll.lllllllllll.l!.l..l'lll.ll!llltl
0S€ - ’ \ Ayoede) paniwisd Jo %06
|
.,f
e e e el — i s et—— e - — s - ——— <"
.,.,.\,r,. Ajpede) yusuwneas] Sunsixy S0
00 -
0SSy
S0°0

mCO_Hum.ﬂO._& MO|4 I191EMI]SEAA
dlJM Yduey uoiunay
9v/8/ sexa] ‘unsny
@ '3pI1g S “AmH sexa] jo jende) TOTT
€5E-4 "ON Wl pa.1alsi8ay sexay
ou| ‘Auedw o) Buaauidug Ispny



yuoW

€Z-1eiN 1Z-R0 oz-unr 61-954 L1-d9ag at-Aejp) vI-3eQ €T-8ny
— e —— — T —— et 1 = —————— B 2 - — — — O
0z
ov
09
C
3,
-
[ =y
n
(5]
, %
08
<]
NN >>> 5
S
> \/) .,> N > Aa 3
3453/pd3 €6 - 2%esony Vv A AW a
7 001
.
v < < J453/pds 801 - AaQ p3S T + 293y <
_ 743
2453/pd8 0€T - siseq Aupiqisead puog 2453/pd3 TET - wnuwixey
oyt

2453/pd3 QST - siseq uSisaq Sunnwizd
091

sisAjeuy adesn HunN dLMM
auey uoiuns

aiomy d . o 9t/8/ sexa] ‘unsny

a 8p1g s “AmH sexa jo |ende) T0TT

€G€-4 "ON Wwi4 pasaisiday sexa]

2u) ‘Auedwo) SupasuiBug aspniy




RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING
WATER AND SANITARY SEWER FACILITIES, SERVICE LINES,
CONNECTIONS, EROSION CONTROL, DRAINAGE FACILITIES AND DISTRICT
PROPERTY

OctoberJuly 20, 20202021

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF HAYS §
REUNION RANCH WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT §
ARTICLE 1
PURPOSE

The following Rules and Regulations Governing Water and Sanitary Sewer Facilities,
Service Lines, Connections-and, Erosion Control, Drainage Facilities and District Property (the
“Rules and Regulations™) shall govern the design, installation and inspection of all connections
and taps made to the District’s water distribution system and sanitary sewer collection system, the
limitations of the flow of waste into the sanitary sewer system and drainage system, protection of

system, and the enforcement of these Rules and Regulations.

ARTICLE I
GENERAL
Section 2.01. Definitions.
1. Customer is any person, partnership, corporation, non-profit corporation, trust or

other legal entity served by the District with water and/or sewer services to a
residence or business establishment. Without limiting the foregoing, the term
Customer as used herein may include residents of the District, builders, contractors,
developers, other conservation and reclamation of districts, and may also include
persons or legal entities seeking water and/or sewer services from the District.

2. District is Reunion Ranch Water Control and Improvement District of Hays
County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

33.  Drainage Systems consists of the District’s drainage systems, including all drainage
easements, channels, storm sewer facilities, detention ponds and all other facilities
owned, maintained or controlled by the District for the purpose of collecting,
controlling, storing, managing or distributing storm and flood waters or run-off.




I

45.

56.

67.

A
o

;

&

Engineer is the person, company or corporation which is under contract with the
District to design District facilities, review plans on behalf of the District, perform
inspections on behalf of the District and perform any additional services as set forth
in an applicable contract with the District.

High Health Hazard is a cross-connection, potential cross-connection or any other
situation involving any substance that can cause death, illness, spread of disease or
that has a high possibility of causing such effects if introduced into the District’s
Water Supply System and the health hazards reflected on Tables 4-1 and 4-2 of the
American Water Works Association (“AWWA”) Manual M14.

Operator is the person, company or corporation which is under contract with the
District’s Water Supply System and Sanitary Sewer Collection System, to collect
amounts owed to the District for such services, report monthly to the District on the
operations of the District’s Water Supply System and Sanitary Sewer Collection
System and perform any additional services as set forth in the contract with the
District. The Operator is also referred to as the “General Manager” in certain of
the exhibits incorporated into these Rules and Regulations.

Rate Order shall mean the District’s Order Establishing Water and Wastewater
Service Rates, Charges and Tap Fees and Adopting General Policies with Respect
to the District’s Water, Wastewater and Drainage Systems, which may be amended
from time to time.

Sanitary Sewer Collection System constitutes the underground sanitary sewer lines
owned or leased and operated by the District. This system is composed of all
interconnecting laterals, mains and trunk lines with manholes, clean-outs, stacks,
tees and wyes located within the publicly dedicated rights-of-way or utility
easements owned or leased and operated by the District. This system is maintained
by the District.

Sanitary Sewer Service Line is any line from a residential dwelling or commercial
building which connects with the District’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System,
including any grease traps or other facilities constructed to prevent non-domestic
waste from being introduced into the District’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System.
This service line is owned and maintained by the property owner of the residential
dwelling or commercial building.

Sewer Tap is the physical connection between the Sanitary Sewer Service Line and
the District’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System.

Sewer Tap Inspection is the inspection performed by the District’s Operator to
assure that the proper materials and connections to the Sanitary Sewer Collection
System have been accomplished in accordance with these Rules and Regulations.




G

|

i

=

Section 2.02.

State Approved Plumbing Code is a set of rules governing plumbing practices
which are at least as stringent and comprehensive as one of the following nationally
recognized codes:

A. Southern Standard Plumbing Code.
B. Uniform Plumbing Code.
C. National Standard Plumbing Code.

Tap Fee is the fee paid to the District to obtain a water meter and sewer inspection
for any dwelling. The amount of the Tap Fee shall be established in the District’s
Rate Order and may be modified or changed at any time.

Utility Easement is an interest in land, granted by dedication, to public utility
entities, including the District, to install and maintain utilities across, over or under
private land together with the right to enter thereon with machinery, other vehicles
and personnel necessary for the maintenance, repair or construction of said utilities.

Water Supply System is composed of all water lines, valves, valve boxes, flushing
valves, blowoff valves, water meters, water meter service lines and meter boxes
located within public rights-of-way, or easements owned or leased and operated by
the District. This system is maintained by the District.

. Water Meter is the recording device that registers the amounts of water consumed

by each Customer of the District. This meter is owned and maintained by the
District.

Water Service Line is any line from a residential dwelling or commercial building
which connects to the District’s Water Supply System. This service line is owned
and maintained by the property owner of the residential dwelling or commercial
structure.

. Water Tap is the physical connection of any Water Service Line to the District’s

Water Supply System. Such connection will be made only by the District’s
Operator.

. Non-residential Connection means any connection to the District’s Water Supply

System or Sanitary Sewer Collection System that serves or is proposed to serve a
commercial or industrial development, a multifamily residential development
(including apartments and condominiums) or any other development that does not
constitute a single family residence.

Adoption of Plumbing Code.




The District hereby adopts as the District’s Plumbing Code Chapter 6 of the Uniform
Plumbing Code entitled “Water Supply and Distribution” and the six (6) plumbing restrictions set
forth in Section 3.04 hereof.

Section 2.03.

Platting Requirement.

No connection shall be made to the District’s Water Supply System or Sanitary Sewer
Collection System unless the tract, parcel or lot of land to be served by such connection:

L.

Section 2.04.

Was first connected to the District’s Water Supply System or Sanitary Sewer
Collection System prior to September 1, 1987, or

Is part of an area covered by a development plat duly approved and recorded
pursuant to Sections 212.0115 and 212.012 of the Local Government Code, as
amended, or

Is not required to be platted, and written certification to that effect, in accordance
with Section 212.0115(e) of the Local Government Code, has been presented to the

District’s Operator.

Approval of Plans and Specifications: Inspection During Construction.

[,

Prior to any Non-residential Connection to the District’s Water Supply System or
the Sanitary Sewer Collection System, the plans and specifications for the Sanitary
Sewer Service Line, the Water Service Line and any drainage systems and water
quality facilities must be submitted to the District’s Engineer for review and
approval. Upon the Engineer’s review and approval, the plans and specifications
shall then be submitted to the District’s Operator for review and approval. The
cost of the review and approval of the plans and specifications by the District’s
Engineer and Operator shall be paid by the Customer in accordance with the
District’s Rate Order.

During construction of any Sanitary Sewer Service Line, Water Service Line or
drainage facilities and water quality facilities for any Non-residential Connection
to the District’s Water Supply System or the Sanitary Sewer Collection System, the
District’s Engineer and operator may conduct periodic inspections of the facilities
being constructed. The District’s Engineer and Operator shall be permitted full
access for such inspections, and any recommendations or requirements made by the
District’s Engineer or Operator pursuant to an inspection shall be implemented as
soon as is reasonably practicable. The cost of such periodic inspections by the
District Engineer and Operator, and all actions of the District Engineer and
Operator hereunder, shall be paid by the Customer in accordance with the District’s

—4—



Rate Order.

2. Prior to the construction of any facilities that a developer or other Customer intends
to transfer or sell to the District, the plans and specifications for proposed
improvements or expansions to the District’s Water Supply System, proposed
improvements or expansions to the District’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System,
any drainage systems and water quality facilities, and all facilities that are intended
to be transferred or sold to the District must be submitted to the District’s Engineer
for review and approval. Upon the Engineer’s review and approval, the plans and
specifications shall then be submitted to the District’s Operator for review and
approval. The cost of the review and approval of the plans and specification by
the District’s Engineer and Operator shall be paid by the Customer in accordance
with the District’s Rate Order.

During construction of any facilities that a developer or other Customer intends to
transfer or sell to the District, the District’s Engineer may conduct construction
phase monitoring of the facilities being constructed to the extent reasonably
necessary to allow the District Engineer to certify that the work is substantially
completed in accordance with and includes all items in applicable plans and
specifications. The District Engineer shall be permitted full access for such
monitoring, and any recommendations or requirements made by the District
Engineer pursuant to such monitoring shall be implemented as soon as is reasonably
practicable. The cost of such monitoring by the District Engineer, and all actions
of the District Engineer hereunder or pursuant to the requirements of any regulatory
authorities, shall be paid by the developer or other Customer in accordance with the
District’s Rate Order.

3. Amounts to be paid by the Customer hereunder may be further specified, and in
addition to other stated amounts due, within the District’s Rate Order, and shall be
paid in accordance with any procedures identified in such Rate Order.

ARTICLE III
WATER CONNECTIONS

Section 3.01. Water Tap Materials. Only the following types of pipe and fitting materials shall
be approved for the installation of Water Taps, including residential Water Taps and commercial
Water Taps:

1y Any meter approved by the City of Austin,

2. Brass curb stops, corporation stops and related fittings manufactured by Ford, Hays
or Muller;



3: Polyethylene water service pipe, 3/4" to 2";

4, Ductile iron or polyvinyl chloride (PVC) (C900) water service pipe, larger than 2";

5. Water main pipe of the type originally installed;

6. Plastic meter box up to 2" meter;

7. Concrete meter box, where traffic use is specified; and

8. Concrete meter vault per City of Austin specifications for 3" and larger meter.

Section 3.02. Plumbing Material Prohibitions.

1. Prohibited Materials.

The use of the following materials are prohibited for the installation and repair of the
District’s Water Supply System and for the installation and repair of any private plumbing
facilities:

A. Any pipe or pipe fitting which contains more than 8.0% lead; and
B. Any solder or flux which contains more than 0.2% lead.

This prohibition may be waived by the District’s Operator for lead joints that are necessary for
repairs to cast iron pipe.

2. Certificate of Compliance.

No new connections to the District’s Water Supply System shall be made unless a state
licensed plumber first submits in writing to the District a Certificate of Compliance, as set forth in
Exhibit “1”attached hereto, specifying that the new connection complies with the plumbing
material prohibitions contained in Section 3.02A hereof. The Certificate of Compliance shall be
signed by the licensed plumber and must be submitted to the District’s Operator prior to continuous
service being supplied. The District shall not accept any Tap Fee that is not accompanied by a
Certificate of Compliance.

Section 3.03. Installation.

1; Service Application and Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit
“2,” must be filed with the District’s Operator. The Customer must pay to the
District’s Operator all Tap Fees, inspection fees and deposits, as described in the

—6—



District’s Rate Order.

2. All Water Taps to the District’s Water Supply System shall be installed only by the
District’s Operator.

3. The District’s Operator shall install Water Taps and set meters at a location on
adjoining property lines, whenever possible, with the meter box being located in
the easement adjacent to the property line and with two (2) meters per box, where
appropriate.

4, The District’s Operator shall be responsible for all repairs to the Water Taps.

5. After installation of the Water Tap, connection of the Water Service Line shall be
made at the expense of the Customer. (Note: This line shall be tested for leaks
since all water recorded through the meter will be charged to the Customer.)

6. After connection to the District’s Water Supply System, the Water Service Line

Section 3.04.

should be thoroughly flushed as to prevent foreign matter from entering the
household system.

Customer Service Inspection Certifications.

1.

A Customer Service Inspection Certification, as described in Exhibit “3” attached
hereto, shall be completed prior to providing continuous water service to any new
construction, on any existing service where the District has reason to believe that
cross-connections or other unacceptable plumbing practices exist, and after any
material improvement, correction or addition to private plumbing facilities. Prior
to the District initiating continuous service, a Customer shall provide a Customer
Service Inspection Certificate to the District. The Customer Service Inspection
Certification may only be performed by those individuals described in Subsection
2 of this Section 3.04. For Customer Service Inspection Certifications of a
commercial connection performed by the District’s Operator, the Customer must
pay the District the Customer Service Inspection Fee prior to the Operator
performing the inspection and certification. Copies of properly completed
Customer Service Inspection Certifications shall be kept on file by the District’s
Operator and made available, upon request, for Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”) review. Inspection certifications shall be
retained for a minimum of ten (10) years. Failure to provide a Customer Service
Inspection Certification in accordance with this Section 3.04 shall constitute a
violation of these Rules and Regulations, and such violation shall be subject to the
enforcement provisions set forth in Article X hereof.

Individuals with the following credentials shall be recognized as capable of

-



conducting a Customer Service Inspection Certification:

A. Plumbing Inspectors and Water Supply Protection Specialists licensed by
the Texas State Board of Plumbing Examiners; and

B. Certified Waterworks Operators and members of other water related
professional groups who have completed a training course, passed an
examination administered by the TCEQ or its designated agent, and hold an
endorsement granted by the TCEQ or its designated agent.

Private plumbing facilities in violation of Article III hereof shall constitute an
unacceptable plumbing practice and violation of these Rules and Regulations. If
an unacceptable plumbing practice is discovered, the Customer shall eliminate the
unacceptable plumbing practice within thirty (30) days from the date of discovery
to prevent possible contamination of the District’s Water Supply System. The
existence of a serious threat to the integrity of the District’s Water Supply System
shall be considered sufficient grounds for immediate termination of water service.
Service can be restored only when the source of potential contamination no longer
exists, or when sufficient additional safeguards have been taken, and a Customer
Service Inspection Certification confirming correction of unacceptable plumbing
practices has been submitted to the District.

The Customer Service Inspection Certification shall certify that:

A. No direct connection between the District’s Water Supply System and a
potential source of contamination exists. Potential sources of
contamination are isolated from the District’s Water Supply System by an
air gap or an appropriate backflow prevention assembly in accordance with
state plumbing regulations. Additionally, all pressure relief valves and
thermal expansion devices are in compliance with state plumbing
regulations.

B. No cross-connection between the District’s Water Supply System and a
private water source exists. Where an actual gap is not maintained between
the District’s Water Supply System and a private water supply, an approved
reduced pressure-zone backflow prevention assembly is properly installed
and a service agreement exists for annual inspection and testing by a
recognized backflow prevention assembly tester.

C. No connection exists which would allow the return of water used for
condensing, cooling or industrial processes back to the District’s Water
Supply System.



Section 3.05.

D. No pipe or pipe fitting which contains more than 8.0% lead exists in private
plumbing facilities installed on or after July 1, 1988.

E. No solder or flux which contains more than 0.2% lead exists in private
plumbing facilities installed on or after July 1, 1998.

F. No new or replacement plumbing fixture is installed which is not in
compliance with a State Approved Plumbing Code.

Prohibited Connections.

)i

Section 3.06.

No water connection from the District’s Water Supply System shall be made to any
establishment where an actual or potential contamination or system hazard exists
without an air gap separation between the drinking water supply and the source of
potential contamination. Where a containment air gap is impractical, individual
“internal” air gaps or mechanical backflow prevention devices shall be required at
the meter in the form of a backflow prevention device (in accordance with AWWA
Standards C510 and C511 and AWWA Manual M14) on those establishments
handling substances deleterious or hazardous to the public health.

No water connection from the District’s Water Supply System shall be made to any
condensing, cooling or industrial process or any other system of non-potable usage
over which the District does not have sanitary control, unless the said connection
is made in accordance with the requirements of paragraph (A) of this section.
Water from such systems cannot be returned to the District’s Water Supply System.

Overhead bulk water dispensing stations must be provided with an air gap between
the filling outlet hose and the receiving tank to protect against back siphonage and

cross-contamination.

Backflow Prevention Assemblies.

1.

Backflow prevention assemblies shall be installed on any connection which poses
a High Health Hazard and any other connection which the District or the District’s
Operator reasonably believes poses a threat to the District’s Water Supply System.
Water service provided for lawn sprinklers, swimming pool supply, reflection pool
supply or other such applications must incorporate a backflow prevention device in
accordance with a State Approved Plumbing Code for the particular designated use.
No permanent water service will be provided to any new connection in the District
which requires a backflow prevention assembly, unless the Customer provides the
District with a Backflow Prevention Assembly Test and Maintenance Report (the
“Test Report”), as described in Exhibit “4” attached hereto. At the request of the

—9—



Customer, the District’s Operator may, on behalf of the District, install the
backflow prevention assembly and complete the Test Report at the Customer’s cost.
Concerning irrigation systems, backflow prevention devices authorized, allowed or
approved by the TCEQ may be used.

For water service provided for swimming pool supply, the District has approved
and adopted specific instructions to be followed and forms to be completed prior to
completion of swimming pool construction, which are attached hereto as Exhibit
“5,” and the requirements of which are specifically incorporated herein by
reference. Pools must incorporate a backflow prevention device as is set forth
above, and pools must drain onto a greenbelt or into the District’s storm drainage
system. No pools may drain into the District’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System.
Access to a Customer’s property through District park property or greenbelts is
strictly prohibited. Any access through or damage to District property is subject
to fines and penalties through the District.

Prior to installation of any in-ground swimming pool, a Customer shall contact the
District’s Operator and submit any items requested by the District’s Operator in
connection with the Operator’s review of the project and required inspections. A
check in the amount of set forth in the District’s Rate Order, payable to Reunion
Ranch WCID representing a partially-refundable deposit shall also be submitted to
the District’s Operator. This deposit will be refunded less inspection fees as set
forth in the District’s Rate Order per inspection and any fines or damages resulting
from construction.

The first inspection by the District’s Operator is required once the pool has been
dug, forming built and plumbing installed prior to the pool being poured. The
inspection includes the backflow and pool drainage systems, which must comply
with these Rules and Regulations. The plumbing must be completed and open for
inspection. If the inspection fails, the Customer will be responsible to correct the
problems, and a reinspection will be conducted at an additional charge as set forth
in the District’s Rate Order. When the pool passes the initial inspection, the
Customer will receive written notice from the District’s Operator to continue
construction. Notification will be sent within 48 hours via email and regular mail.
Work shall not proceed until such notification has been received.

When the pool has been completed, the District’s Operator will conduct a final
inspection to determine if the pool has been built according to the approved
specifications. Failure to schedule a final inspection may result in forfeiture of the
remainder of the deposit.

Effective January 1, 1996, all backflow prevention assemblies shall be tested upon

~10-



installation by a Recognized Backflow Prevention Assembly Tester and certified
to be operating within specifications. The Test Report, as described in Exhibit “4”
attached hereto, shall be retained for a minimum of three (3) years. The District
shall provide these records to the TCEQ for inspection upon request. Backflow
prevention assemblies which are installed to provide protection against High Health
Hazards must also be tested and certified to be operating within specifications at
least annually by a Recognized Backflow Prevention Device Tester.

Recognized Backflow Prevention Device Testers shall have completed a TCEQ
course on cross-connection control and backflow prevention and passed an
examination administered by the TCEQ or its designated agent. The accredited
tester classification shall be broken down into two categories:

A. The “General Tester” is qualified to test and repair backflow prevention
assemblies on any domestic, commercial, industrial or irrigation service.

B. The “Fireline Tester” is qualified to test and repair backflow prevention
assemblies on firelines only. The State Fire Marshall’s office requires that
a person performing maintenance on firclines must be employed by an
Approved Fireline Contractor.

Individuals who can show proof of completion of a course and passage of an exam
based on the ABPA or ASSE National Exam, prior to the effective date of these
regulations, may be recognized as accredited for the term of their current
certification (not to exceed three (3) years).

Gauges used in the testing of backflow prevention assemblies shall be tested for
accuracy annually in accordance with the University of Southern California’s
Foundation of Cross-Connection Control and Hydraulic Research and/or the
AWWA Manual M14. Test gauge serial numbers must be included on the Test
Report and Recognized Backflow Prevention Device Testers shall have gauges
tested for accuracy.

A Test Report must be completed by the Recognized Backflow Prevention
Assembly Tester for each assembly tested. The signed and dated original must be
submitted to the District’s Operator for record keeping purposes.

Repairs to backflow prevention assemblies shall be performed by authorized
individuals as recognized by the Texas State Board of Plumbing Examiners, the
TCEQ, Texas Irrigators Advisory Council or the Texas Commission on Fire
Protection-State Fire Marshall’s Office, depending upon application and use.

The use of a backflow prevention device at service connection shall be considered

-11-



Section 3.07.

as additional backflow protection and shall not negate the use of backflow
protection on internal hazards as outlined and enforced by a State Approved
Plumbing Code.

Customer Service Agreements.

The District is responsible for protecting its Water Supply System from
contamination or pollution which can result from unacceptable plumbing practices.
To this end, the District has adopted plumbing restrictions to provide protection to
the District’s Water Supply System. To notify Customers of the plumbing
restrictions which are in place, each Customer shall be required to sign a Service
Application and Agreement, as described in Exhibit “2” attached hereto, before the
District will begin service. In addition, when service to an existing connection has
been suspended or terminated, the District will not re-establish service unless it has
a signed copy of a Customer Service Agreement. The District will maintain a copy
of the Customer Service Agreement as long as the Customer and/or the premises is
connected to the District.

The Customer shall allow his/her property to be inspected for possible cross-
connections and other unacceptable plumbing practices. These inspections shall
be conducted by the District or its designated agent prior to initiating new water
service, when there is reason to believe that cross-connections or other
unacceptable plumbing practices exist, or after any major changes to the private
plumbing facilities. Inspections shall be conducted during the District’s normal
business hours.

The District shall notify the Customer in writing of any cross-connection or other
unacceptable plumbing practices which have been identified during the initial
inspection or the periodic reinspection.

The Customer shall correct any undesirable plumbing practice on his/her premises
within ten (10) working days of receiving notification from the District.

The Customer shall, at his expense, properly install, test and maintain any backflow
prevention device required by the District. Copies of all testing and maintenance
records shall be provided to the District.

If a Customer fails to comply with the terms of the Customer Service Agreement,
the District shall, at its option, either terminate service or properly install, test and
maintain an appropriate backflow prevention assembly at the service connection.
Any expenses associated with the enforcement of the Customer Service Agreement

—12—



Section 4.01.

shall be billed to the Customer.

ARTICLE IV
SANITARY SEWER CONNECTIONS

Sanitary Sewer Service Line Installation.

1.

Section 4.02.

Only one Sanitary Sewer Service Line connection to the District’s Sanitary Sewer
Collection System is permitted for each residence or commercial building. The
Sanitary Sewer Service Line shall remain fully within the boundaries of the
Customer’s property until the line reaches a utility easement or street right-of-way.

No opening in the District’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System will be allowed to
remain overnight or during rain.

All Sanitary Sewer Service Lines must be constructed to true alignment and grade.
Warped and/or sagging lines will not be permitted. Sanitary Sewer Service Lines
must have continuous contact with firm trench bottom throughout their entire run.

Lines placed in such manner as to increase the likelihood of being displaced during
backfill will be rejected.

All Sanitary Sewer Service Lines should be run from wyes or stacks directly to the
residence or structure without meanders or bends.

Sanitary Sewer Service Line Materials. Only the following types of pipe and

fitting materials are approved for constructing Sanitary Sewer Service Lines. Pipe and fittings in
each Sanitary Sewer Service Line must consist of the following material or other material approved
by the District’s Engineer:

1.

Vitrified clay pipe conforming to ASTM Specification C700 with joint coupling
conforming to ASTM Specifications C425 or C594 and installed according to
ASTM C12.

Cast iron soil pipe, standard weight, conforming to ASTM Specification A74 with
rubber gasket joint coupling conforming to ASTM Specification C564.

Poly-vinyl-chloride PSM (PVC) pipe conforming to ASTM Specification D3034
or ASTM Specification F789 (with UL listing) and installed according to ASTM
D2321.

Ductile Iron Pipe conforming to ANSI A21.51 with rubber gasket joints ANSI

A21.11 and installed according to manufacturer’s recommendations.

~13—



Section 4.03.

Acryolnitrile-butadiene-styrene (ABS) pipe material conforming to ASTM
Specification D2751.

Size and Grade of Sanitary Sewer Service Lines.

1.

Section 4.04.

Minimum Sizes for Sanitary Sewer Services Lines shall be as follows:

A. Residential - - - 4 inches in diameter; and

B. Commercial - - - 6 inches in diameter.

The minimum grades for Sanitary Sewer Service Lines shall be as follows:
A. 4-inch pipe - - - 14-inch drop per hundred feet (1.2%);

B. 6-inch pipe - - - 8-inch drop per hundred feet (0.7%); and

C. 8-inch pipe - - - 5-inch drop per hundred feet (0.4%).

The maximum grades for Sewer Service Lines shall be as follows:

A. 4-inch pipe - - - two-and-one-half-feet drop per hundred feet (2.5%);

B. 6-inch pipe - - - one-and-one-half-feet drop per hundred feet (1.5%); and
C. 8-inch pipe - - - one-foot drop per hundred feet (1%).

Connection of Building Sewer Qutlet.

1.

On all building waste outlets, the building tie-on connections shall be made directly
to the stub-out from the building plumbing at the foundation.

Water-tight adapters of a type compatible with the materials being joined shall be
used at the point of connection of a Sanitary Sewer Service Line to the building
plumbing. No cement grout materials shall be permitted.

Unless an exception is permitted by the District’s Operator, existing wye and stack
connections must be utilized for connection of a Sanitary Sewer Service Line to the

District’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System.

Commercial users shall install a sampling well constructed to City of Austin

—14—



Section 4.05.

standards and a grease trap with sampling port constructed to City of Austin
standards when required by the District’s Engineer and Operator.

Fittings and Cleanouts.

1.

Sanitary Sewer Service Lines must be at least 24 inches below (vertically) and at
least 9 feet from (horizontally) any Water Service Line (far side or near side
connection). If this is not possible, a cast iron casing over the Water Service Line
or some other method approved by District’s Engineer and complying with the rules
of the TCEQ must be installed by the Customer and shall be inspected by the
District’s Operator.

Excavation for Sewer Taps shall be water tamped in all areas within 5 feet
(vertically or horizontally) of any existing sewer lines, sidewalks or driveways.
Soil not suitable for water tamping (clay modules, organic material or silty soils)
shall be removed and replaced with suitable backfill materials.

A Service Application and Agreement (a copy of which is attached as Exhibit “2”)
must be filed with the District’s Operator prior to construction of any Sanitary
Sewer Service Line, and the Tap Fee and/or Sewer Tap Inspection fee as established
in the District’s most current Rate Order should accompany the application.
(Application forms are available from the District’s Operator.) Construction of
any Sanitary Sewer Service Line must not begin until the design of the Sanitary
Sewer Service Line is approved by the District’s Engineer and construction is
authorized by the District’s Operator.

When Sanitary Sewer Service Line is complete, and prior to backfilling the pipe
trench, the Customer shall request an inspection of the Sanitary Sewer Service Line.
Requests for inspections (or re-inspections) shall be made to the District’s Operator
at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the inspection.

The Sewer Tap shall be made only under the supervision of the District’s Operator
by use of an adapter of a type compatible with materials being joined. The Sewer
Tap shall be watertight. No cement grout materials are permitted. The area
around the tap shall be embedded and backfilled with cement stabilizing sand.

Any damage to the District’s facility shall be repaired promptly by the Customer
under the direction of the District’s Operator. Major damage will be repaired by
the District’s Operator at the Customer’s expense.

Backfilling of a Sanitary Sewer Service Line trench must be accomplished within
twenty-four (24) hours of inspection and approval. Backfill materials shall be sand
or loam, free of large lumps or clods. No debris will be permitted in the trench of

~15-



backfill.

8. During inspection of the Sanitary Sewer Service Line, the District’s Operator will
examine all District facilities, such as manholes, valves, flush valves and inlets on
and adjacent to the lot. The connection permit will not be granted until any
damage to these facilities has been repaired.

9. The District’s Operator will complete the Inspection Form (a copy of which is
attached as Exhibit “6”) and file it for record with the Application.

10. A connection permit will be issued after the Sewer Tap Inspection is performed and
the District’s Operator confirms that all requirements of these Rules and
Regulations have been met.

11.  Connection permits which are rejected for any deficiency shall be promptly
corrected and a reinspection requested. A reinspection fee as set forth in the
District’s Rate Order shall be paid at the time the reinspection is requested.

Section 4.06. Grinder Pumps. Certain lots within the District require grinder pumps. For
service to any one of those lots, the Customer must enter into a Service Agreement Concerning
Grinder Pump Sewer System for Customer form attached to the Service Application and
Agreement, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “2.” All private lift stations or grinder pumps
required for wastewater service to an individual Customer must be installed by the Customer’s
plumber at the Customer’s expense. The District’s engineer must approve the plans for any such
facility prior to the time construction is initiated, and the Customer who will be served by the
facilities must enter into an agreement with the District prior to initiation of utility service that sets
forth applicable inspection and maintenance requirements, including the District’s agreement to
pay all costs associated with the inspection, operation, maintenance, repair or replacement of the
facilities, and provides for continuing access to such facilities by the District’s representative.
Any pressurized sewer lines or other sewer lines located within the Customer’s house or on the
Customer’s property up to and including the check valve at the street will not be a part of the
grinder pump system and will be considered a part of the home plumbing. A fter installation, these
sewer lines will not be inspected by the District, but the District will be responsible for maintaining
the grinder pumps.

ARTICLE V
FEES AND CHARGES

The District’s fees and charges shall be as established by its Rate Order.

ARTICLE VI
EXCLUDED FLOW AND WASTE

~16—



1. No waste material which is not biologically degradable will be permitted to
discharge into the District’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System, including mud and
debris accumulated during service line installation. The Customer should refer to
the District’s Rate Order for specific information concerning acceptable discharges
into the District’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System. The Customer is to be fully
responsible for cleaning and jetting lines of any dirt or debris permitted to enter
during service construction.

2; No surface runoff water will be permitted to be discharged into the District’s
Sanitary Sewer Collection System, including but not limited to downspouts and
yard or area drains.

3; Swimming pool and/or spa connections will not be made to the District’s Sanitary
Sewer Collection System unless specifically approved by the District in writing.
Any violation of this prohibition shall be repaired immediately by the District at
the sole cost and expense of the Customer, in addition to any fines, penalties and
other remedies available to the District.

ARTICLE VII
PRIVATE WELLS/TANKS

The construction of water wells and/or the installation of septic tanks or other sewage
treatment facilities is prohibited without prior written approval by the Board of Directors. Said
approval, if granted by the Board of Directors, will state the purpose for the construction of a water
well and the intended use of the water.

ARTICLE VIII
AVAILABILITY OF ACCESS/OBSTRUCTIONS

By application for connection to the District’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System and/or
Water Supply System, the Customer shall be deemed to be granting to the District and its
representatives a right on ingress and egress to and from the meter or point of service for such
installation, maintenance and repair as the District, in its judgment, may deem reasonably
necessary. The Customer shall also be deemed to be granting to the District and its representatives
a right of ingress and egress to the Customer’s property, including the exterior of the Customer’s
premises, for the purpose of performing the inspections and completing the Customer Service
Inspection Certifications required by these Rules and Regulations. Taps and connections will not

-17-



be made when, in the opinion of the District’s Engineer or Operator, the work area is obstructed
by building materials or other debris of the work area is not completed or finished to grade. When
sidewalks, driveways or other improvements have been constructed prior to application for service,
such application shall be construed and accepted as the Customer’s waiver of a claim for any
damages to such improvements resulting from the reasonable actions of the District’s Operator in
installation of the connection.

ARTICLE IX
PROTECTION OF DISTRICT WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM
AND SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM

Section 9.01. General.

L. Damage to the District’s Water Supply System or the Sanitary Sewer Collection
System by the District’s Customers, including developers and builders’ plumbers,
will be repaired by the District at the Customer’s expense.

2. After the water meter has been set or a fire hydrant meter installed, the Customer
shall at all times keep the area in, around and upon such facilities and District
easements and property under Customer’s control free from rubbish or obstructions
of any king, including shrubbery. Failure to keep such facilities and District
easements and property under Customer’s control free from rubbish or obstructions
of other kind, including shrubbery, shall result in disconnection of water service
and/or the assessment of charges necessary to remove said obstructions.
Customers are prohibited from introducing material into the District’s Sanitary
Sewer Collection System which could cause obstruction of said system. In the
event that an inspection by the District’s Engineer or Operator reveals foreseeable
damage to the District’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System resulting from a
Customer’s failure to prevent obstructions from entering said system, the District
reserves the right to remove the obstruction immediately and without notice. Any
costs incurred by the District for removal of an obstruction to the District’s system,
plus a District administration fee of 20% of said costs, shall be assessed to the
Customer.

3. It shall be unlawful for any person, unless authorized in writing by the District’s
Operator, to tamper or interfere with, obstruct access to or as a result of willful
action injure, deface or destroy any facilities that are a part of the District’s Water
Supply System or Sanitary Sewer Collection System, including, with respect to the
waterworks system, water plants, flushing valves, valve boxes and water lines up
to the meter box and including meters, provided, however, that duly authorized
members of the local fire department shall have their right to use such flushing
valves for fire protection purposes.

-18-



4. It shall be unlawful for any person to connect any building to the District’s Water
Supply System without a meter or to have a straight line connection to a building
without being metered. It shall also be unlawful for any person, other than the
District’s Operator or Engineer, to draw water from the District’s Water Supply
System (except for the use of water for firefighting purposes) without being
metered, including the unauthorized use of a flushing valve or unmetered water
taps.

5. It shall be unlawful for any person to deposit, throw, drain, discharge or otherwise
cause to be injected into any sewer, manhole, catch basin, flush tank or other facility
that is a part of the District’s Water Supply System or Sanitary Sewer Collection
System any debris or foreign substance that would interfere with the proper and
routine functioning thereof.

Section 9.02. No Blasting or Burning. No Customer, builder, contractor, developer or other
person may conduct blasting, large-scale burning, welding or any other activities involving the
ignition of combustible materials within the District absent actual receipt of prior written approval
of the District or the District Operator expressly permitting such activities.

Section 9.03. No Material Alteration of Existing Roads. Absent the prior written approval of
the District or the District Engineer, the material alteration of any streets or roads within the
District (including without limitation cutting, removal and replacement of sections of streets or
roads) for the purpose of constructing or making any connection to the District’s Water Supply
System or Sanitary Sewer Collection System is strictly prohibited. In cases in which material
alteration of streets or roads is proposed in connection with the installation of underground utilities,
and such material alteration is the only feasible alternative in installing such utilities, the party
proposing the material alteration shall consult with the District Engineer and implement the
recommendations of the District Engineer, if any, prior to initiating any activities that may result
in material alteration of any street or road. The Customer may also be required to consult with
Hays County prior to initiating any such activities.

ARTICLE X
EROSION CONTROL

1. Builders, contractors and/or lot owners shall comply with all TCEQ and EPA
regulations regarding construction stormwater, and builders or lot owners shall
implement proper stormwater and erosion and sediment control measures.

2. Builders/Developers and contractors must maintain its respective erosion and
sediment controls to ensure that the controls function in a sound and proper manner.
Builders/Developers and contractors may rely on the City of Austin’s
Environmental Design Criteria Manual as a guide to proper maintenance.

~19—



All temporary sediment and erosion controls must be completed prior to any other
development activity or construction being commenced on the building site.

Dirt, mud and debris may not be accumulated on any street right-of-way within the
District. The builder/developer or contractor shall be responsible for any District
property or facility due to erosion and runoff. The builder/developer or contractor
shall repair any damage to District property or facility due to erosion or runoff.

Dumping of construction trash and debris, dirt and construction vehicle and
equipment washout on public or private property other than the lot for which the
material is designated is prohibited.

The District may inspect all sediment and erosion controls on a regular or periodic
basis.

The District may, at its option, repair or replace defective erosion control devices
or damage to District property that are not repaired by the builder/developer or
contractor within a reasonable time frame and recover that cost from the
builder/developer or contractor.

Builders/Developers must maintain a construction dumpster or other sufficient,
secure container for the disposal of refuse on site at all times during any
construction activity on property within the District. All construction debris and
refuse must be placed within the approved containers and properly managed.

ARTICLE XI
PROTECTION OF DRAINAGE SYSTEMS

The District’s drainage systems, including all drainage easements, channels, storm
sewer facilities, detention ponds and all other facilities owned, maintained or

managing or distributing storm and flood waters or run-off. must be protected from
abuse, in order to assure the proper functioning of all such facilities for the benefit
of all property owners and residents of the District.

No foreign materials or debris, including motor oil, grass, leaves or tree clippings,

discharged or allowed to migrate into the District’s drainage systems. A violation
of this rule will render the violator subject to fine as well as to the requirement that

any resulting damage to the District’s systems be repaired at the expense of the

-20-



violator.

ARTICLE XII
PROTECTION OF DISTRICT PROPERTY AND FACILITIES GENERALLY

The District is a political subdivision of the State of Texas, and its property and
facilities are purchased, constructed and maintained through imposition of ad
valorem taxes paid by residents of the District. In view of the District’s duties to
residents, the District has a substantial interest in protecting and maintaining
District property and facilities. Therefore, it shall be unlawful for any Customer
or other person to trespass upon, damage or remove any District property or
facilities, including real property , improvements, fixtures, equipment and materials
located on or beneath District property or elsewhere, except as expressly authorized
by the District. In addition to any other rights of the District, any person found to
be in violation of this prohibition shall be liable for, and shall pay to the District,
such monetary amounts necessary to compensate the District for costs incurred in
the repair of District property, including legal, engineering, construction and other
replacement costs. The District shall notify such person of the damages and send
to such person a statement explaining the amount to be collected.

As is set forth in the preceding paragraph, the District has a substantial interest in
protecting and maintaining District Facilities. To that end, the District has
approved and adopted a “Facilities Use, Release & Indemnity Agreement” which
is attached hereto as Exhibit “7,” and the requirements of which are specifically
incorporated herein by reference. Absent execution of such Facilities Use, Release
& Indemnity Agreement and delivery of same to the District or its Operator prior
to use, the use of any District Facility as defined in Exhibit “7” for an event to be
attended by more than five persons, or by any non-resident of the District not
accompanied by a District resident, is strictly prohibited.

The District may contract for or employ its own peace officers with power to make
arrests when necessary to prevent or abate the commission of offenses of the rules
and regulations of the District, damage to property owned or operated by the
District and any offenses against the laws of the state.

The District has adopted Park Rules concerning District Park property, including
parks, greenbelts and trails owned by, dedicated to or maintained by the District.
The District’s Park Rules have been adopted pursuant to the same authority as these
Rules and Regulations as supplement, and in addition to these Rules and
Regulations. Nothing within the Park Rules shall be construed to invalidate these
Rules and Regulations. The text of such Rules and Regulations may be made
available upon request to the District Operator.

21—



ARTICLE XHXIII
ENFORCEMENT OF RULES AND REGULATIONS

Any and all of the following remedies may be employed by the District to abate and prevent
any violation of the provisions of these Rules and Regulations:

1.

%

Discontinuance of water service.
Disconnection and sealing of sanitary sewer connection.

Pursuant to Texas Water Code § 49.004, the Board hereby imposes the following
civil penalties for breach of any rule or regulation of the District: The violator shall
pay the District twice the costs the District has sustained due to the violation up to
$10,000. A penalty under this Section is in addition to any other penalty provided
by the laws of this State and may be enforced by complaints filed in the appropriate
court of jurisdiction in the county in which the District’s principal office or meeting
placeis located. Under Sections 51.128 and 54.206 of the Texas Water Code, rules
and regulations adopted by the District are recognized by the courts in the same
manner as penal ordinances of a city, which may be enforced under Texas Local
Government Code § 54.012. If'the District prevails in any suit to enforce its rules,
it may, in the same action, recover any reasonable fees for attorneys, expert
witnesses and other costs incurred by the District before the court. The amount of
the attorneys’ fees shall be fixed by the court. Such civil penalties as authorized
herein shall be in addition to any other remedy or penalty provided by state law,
including a civil action for injunctive or other relief.

A Customer found in violation of these Rules and Regulations shall be liable to the
District for all expenses borne by the District including laboratory fees, legal fees,
engineering fees and other costs incurred by the District in establishing the violation
and resolving the cause of the violation.

A Customer found in violation of these Rules and Regulations who causes or
contributes to a violation by the District’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System of
effluent parameters shall be liable to the District for all expenses borne by the
District, including legal and engineering fees related to any lawsuit filed by federal,
state or local authorities regarding violations by the District of effluent parameters
applicable to the District’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System.

In connection with violations of Erosion Control (Article X hereof), failure to
adhere to the preceding requirements will be subject to a fine of five hundred dollars
($500.00) for the first violation and seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00) for the
second and subsequent violations per lot per day to be paid by the builder,
developer, corporation or other entity or individual who violates the above

-22—



regulations to be paid to the District. In addition, the District may also impose the
cost of replacement of District property or the cost associated with trash removal
plus a 15% administrative fee for violations of that section.

Pursuant to Texas Water Code § 51.241, a person who violates these Rules and
Regulations commits a criminal offense classified by statute as a Class C
Misdemeanor; and is subject to criminal prosecution. Any violations of these
Rules and Regulations may be reported to local authorities and/or prosecutors.
Persons prosecuted for violation of these Rules and Regulations shall also be
subject to any additional federal, state and local criminal and penal provisions.

Fach method of enforcing these Rules and Regulations set forth in this Article XII
is cumulative of the others, and the exercise of any rights hereunder shall not divest
the District of any other rights of enforcement or remedies. Nothing in these Rules
and Regulations shall be construed as a waiver of the District’s right to bring a civil
action to enforce the provisions of these Rules and Regulations, and to seek all
remedies and damages as allowed by law.

ARTICLE XHIXIV
GENERAL PROVISIONS

+——These Rules and Regulations shall become effective upon publication of
notice of adoption of these Rules and Regulations. Penalties for violations of rules
and regulations are not effective and enforceable until five days after the
publication of notice pursuant to statute. Pursuant to Sections 51.130 and 54.208
of the Texas Water Code, five days after such publication, the published Rules and
Regulations shall be in effect, and ignorance of such Rules and Regulations is not
a defense for a prosecution or enforcement of the penalty.

Questions concerning these Rules and Regulations, or any other rules or regulations
of the District, should be directed to the District Operator. Similarly, reports of
violations of these Rules and Regulations should be made to the District Operator.
Inquiries and reports may be directed to:

Inframark

Operator of Reunion Ranch Water Control and Improvement District
14050 Summit Drive, Suite 103

Austin, Texas 78728

Phone: (512) 246-0498

Fax: (512) 716-0024

23—



PASSED AND APPROVED this the 20th day of Octeber;2020]July, 2021.

24—



Dennis Daniel, Board President

ATTEST:

Eileen-Grass-AssistantRonald Meyer, Secretary

[DISTRICT SEAL]

1\Reunion Ranch\rules&reg-26202021
104520771321

25—



e J WEST TRAVIS COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY AGENCY
3 ”~ I?UA-"? 13215 Bee Cave Pkwy, Building B, Suite 110, Bee Cave, Texas 78738
Y ot )é"‘ Office: (512) 263-0100 Fax: (512) 263-2289
travine® www.wtcpua.org
June 21, 2021
Reunion Ranch WCID

1970 Rawhide Dr. #202
Round Rock, TX 78631
jessica@bottdouthitt.com

RE: Notice of Potential Adjustment to Wholesale Water and Wastewater Rates
Dear Customer:

This notice is to advise you that the Board of Directors of the West Travis County Public
Utility Agency (the “Agency” or “WTCPUA”) is considering action to adjust wholesale water
and wastewater base rates at the August 19,2021 Board of Directors meeting. These adjustments
are based on the Capital Amortization Schedule updated May 22, 2019. The proposed wholesale
water monthly base fee for Reunion Ranch WCID is $13,032.05. The adjusted rates will be
effective October 1, 2021.

If you have any questions regarding the matters detailed in this letter, please do not
hesitate to contact me at (512) 501-8086 or at jriechers@wtcpua.org

Sincerely,
Achare

Jennifer Riechers
General Manager

cc: Stefanie Albright, Attorney at Law
Scott Roberts, President WTCPUA



West Travis County Publlc Utility Agency
Wholesale Rate Study
Updated May 22, 2019

Sample: Individual Capital Amortization Schedule

Reunion Ranch

Serles 2013-2019 Debt Payment Schedule Capltal in Rates
Effective Effective Effective New Capital Cost
2015 2/1/2016 10/1/2016 10/1/2019 Increase

Effective Interest Rate 4.89% 4.69% 4,69% 3.78%
Capital Cost Allacation 2,116,856 § 2,257,228 $ 2,388,341 § 2,339,639

Plus Reserves 135,935 141,705 149,936 131,725

Plus Issuance Costs (2%) 45,056 47,979 50,766 49,427
Capital Cost Allacation s 2,297,847 $ 2,446,912 & 2,589,043 § 2,520,791 § (68,252)
Build-out LUEs 480

Current LUEs {January 2013} -
Annual Payment per LUE $ 401

Effective Impact Fee Credit 18%

Additional Cost Total Annual Debt Annual Minimum

Projected LUEs  Baginning Balance Added Interest Expense Subtotal Payment* Ending Balance Bill Pald to PUA"™
2014 0 5 2,297,847 5 112,365 § 2,410,212 5 10,843 § 2,399,363
Jan 2015 -Feb 2015 72 % 2,399,363 $ 19,555 $ 2,418,918 § 1,808 $ 2,417,109
March 2015 - Dec 2015 72 & 2,417,109 H 94,469 $ 2,511,578 $ 24,930 $ 2,486,648
Jan-16 114 § 2,486,648 5 9,719 § 2,496,367 $ 2,493 § 2,493,874
Feb 2016-Sept 2016 114 § 2,493,874 % 149,065 % 82,636 $ 2,725,575 § 32,657 § 2,692,918
Oct-Dec 2016 114 4§ 2,692,918 4 142,131 4 33,241 § 2,868,290 $ 17,645 S 2,850,645
2017 156 & 2,850,645 5 133,695 § 2,984,340 § 70,580 $ 2,913,760
2018 198 § 2,913,760 5 136,655 $ 3,050,416 $ 70,580 $ 2,979,836
Jan-Oct 2019 198 & 2,979,836 $ 11,646 $ 2,991,482 $ 52,935 § 2,938,547
Oct-Dec 2019 198 § 2,938,547 & (68,252} § 99,479 § 2,969,773 § 19,844 § 2,949,930

2020 282 § 2,949,930 $ 111,533 § 3,061,463 $ 113,050 $ 2,948,413 §  120,493.13

2021 324 § 2,948,413 5 111,476 $ 3,059,889 $ 129,887 2,930,002 §  138,438.92

2022 366 § 2,930,002 H 110,780 § 3,040,782 $ 146,724 $ 2,804,058 §  156,384.70

2023 408 & 2,894,058 3 109,421 § 3,003,478 $ 163,561 % 2,839,917 §  174,330.49

2024 480 § 2,839,917 5 107,374 § 2,947,291 $ 192,425 $ 2,754,866 §  205,094.69

2025 480 § 2,754,866 $ 104,158 $ 2,859,024 $ 192,425 § 2,666,600 §  205,094.69

2026 480 § 2,666,600 s 100,821 § 2,767,420 % 192,425 % 2,574,995 §  205,094.69

2027 480 § 2,574,995 $ 97,357 $ 2,672,353 § 192,425 $ 2,479,928 §  205,094.69

2028 480 § 2,479,928 H 93,763 § 2,573,691 % 192,425 $ 2,381,266 §  205,094.69

2029 480 S 2,381,266 5 90,033 § 2,471,299 § 192,425 $ 2,278,874 &  205,094.69

2030 480 § 2,278,874 5 86,161 § 2,365,035 § 192,425 $ 2,172,611 $  205,094.69

2031 480 § 2,172,611 3 82,144 $ 2,254,754 192,425 § 2,062,329 §  205,094.69

2032 480 S 2,062,329 5 77,974 $ 2,140,303 $ 192,425 $ 1,947,879 §  205,094.69

2033 480 § 1,947,879 5 73,647 § 2,021,525 $ 192,425 % 1,829,001 §  205,094.69

2034 480 & 1,829,101 5 69,156 $ 1,898,257 § 192,425 § 1,705,832 §  205,094.69

2035 480 § 1,705,832 5 64,495 $ 1,770,327 $ 152,425 § 1,577,902 §  205,094.62

2036 480 $ 1,577,902 $ 59,658 $ 1,637,561 $ 192,425 § 1,445,136 §  205,094.69

2037 480 % 1,445,136 s 54,639 § 1,499,775 § 192,425 & 1,307,350 5 205,094.69

2038 480 & 1,307,350 $ 49,429 § 1,356,779 § 152,425 § 1,164,355 §  205,094.69

2039 480 § 1,164,355 H 44,023 § 1,208,377 $ 192,425 $ 1,015,953 5§  205,094.69

2040 480 $ 1,015,953 5 38,412 § 1,054,365 $ 192,425 § 861,940 §  205,094.69

2041 480 § 861,940 5 32,589 § 894,529 § 192,425 $ 702,104 §  205,094.69

2042 480 § 702,104 5 26,546 § 728,650 $ 192,425 $ 536,225 %  205,094.69

2043 480 § 536,225 5 20,274 $ 556,499 § 192,425 § 364,074 §  205,094.69

2044 480 § 364,074 s 13,765 % 377,839 $ 192,425 § 185,414 §  205,094.69

2045 480 § 185,414 5 7,010 § 192,425 $ 192,425 $ 0) § 205,094.69



()INFRAMARK

WATER & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES

Reunion Ranch WCID
General Manager Reports for the month of

June 2021
Board Meeting: July 20th, 2021

Reviewed By: Kristi Hester
Date: 7.13.21



United States

@ | N F R A M A R K 14050 Summit Drive, #103 Austin, TX 78728

T: +1 512 246 0498

Memorandum for: Board of Director's Reunion Ranch WCID

From: Kristi Hester

Date: 7.20.21

Subject: General Manager's Executive Summary Report

Below is a summary of activities since the last board meeting:

1) Water System

a)

b)
c)
d)

501 active connections. 7.45 MG purchased for the month. 90.8% water accounted for.
Chlorine and bacteriological samples all in compliance.

12 delinquent letters mailed 4 disconnects. All have been paid

TCEQ Virtual Inspection on the water system scheduled for July 26th

2) WWTP/Collection System

a)

b)

f)
g)

e)

Total flows 1.39 MG, average 46,000 GPD, 92% capacity - exceeded BOD and
TSS permit levels

We made good progress on getting the BOD and TSS limits down until the last
week of June when the hauler pulled loads from the aeration basin instead of
the EQ basin due to the EQ basin being empty. This caused the solids in the
plant to drop tremendously and had a major impact on the treatment process.

All consultants are working together on responding to TCEQ notice of violation
received June 24th. Response is due August 16th

Confirmed pump 2 in lift station 1 is operational with no damages

We are recommending a full manhole survey of the collection system,
approximately 162 to 1) identify any possible manholes that are below grade 2)
verify the condition of each. The survey will provide a overall review of the
collection system and identify any possible infiltration areas

possible high run times during rain events - refer to separate report on the
findings

Scheduled to repair several leaks in irrigation fields including zone 17 -
currently we are testing the solenoids to verify they are working the valves

Made ?epairs to pre EQ pump#2

3) Drainage/Ponds

a)

Pond and erosion control inspection conducted on June 10th, 2021. Reports are enclosed.

2



4) Construction
a) Conducted 31 builder inspections and 3 pool inspections.

5) Other
a) Insurance claim for lift station 1 has been completed amount $25,734 to be reimbursed

b) We have submitted information for Federal funds waiting on State review
¢) Monitoring the street conditions at around the WWTP scheduling cleaning as needed

Current Items Requiring Board Approval

Amount WO# Vendor Description
$6,000.00 Inframark Manhole Survey
Pump Runtimes Pump Runtimes
Rewwen Aanch L31 - Sat 5/1/2% tn Tue &/32021 Raruna s B slalien £ 3 T4l S0 35 Tue A2
[ ] L]
L d by \ > ¥ e
4 ' I\ e’ €

& ™ 0 L T ] 2 " . > ]
YN PN S "‘."'."”"-..’-....'m e W8 @07y Y ¢

Reunion Ranch Efluent Data Profite

— | R PSS e ooing (BFF #A0 chog RS




[ 1] Crigmnh o T T e g ey 1991¢ T PEVODN -4 T ISl ey ey Lo

E ) frap H] t T uogms Yy uommey WIE HigEne anan i U iy iy ookt
oAz g - s TRE T
oy 000 o ' 74 vogms Yy onmay (113 LsRpim TEma " ER S L T ] Lo0us
Wi Eaz k4 I £ ) R (2113 pEZ00 Wi 1] L} 1577 youRy vormpy fritey
] ]
e LYF000 of T & 4 9T g sem—ty oty EORE-T0 EPHEOQ = z 18T (W Dofmey g
e TE50:00 L1 I T4 woTT gy ey (118 AW rsunl 124 1 157 oy Tommsy g
HoE6z Vhtee =g
e o 000 o T T 0w g ey B 014 sl 0$°$0:00 L b 157 Py wmaney £008T
L ol TU5E:00 . 1 TH bonms g| Bomm=y. o ild e il 1eman L3 I 137 vy tiekmey $008T
ootz imen T Fownc
14t N 4 4 T8 g ety o014 wREN0 6TH0:00 w b4 1577 yumy ununzy SORT
oyl ] R i T @ oEs g ey (12113 resn 9EZ0:00 it L] 157 ey ommy SOORT
- ) ) fmiEn = = Vs
Sompmy Emi w0 AV sty ey pogery wy aws Wiy emmy awgessoaY M) Gy eemg  tamy swug
- suoEnye]) dung - ~ suopepaye]) dung -
_sTansy e ¥ gin iy L] : 153N e o wer @ T
§risve K 1GHFI0 L) = o I Bt sCebin . frism oty & i}
g e ) MO DAY ] SN OAY o =y Fmeyey (00, BT OAY. RS ARNT AV ..._!vw.. .u._.-&-__ g
~53isnig ARuny Arg - - smspye)s ity aeg -
1707 77 Sung gy m raz | dey dequeEs 1008 41 3np "lrpmsng o0 yop | Aey s
il 157y vaoy
= - 7T SRR A e dlmy - * STV T pARU] sy semennaen dung -
2
-
=

M el =

P, -
. - ay b

S Ul

g i A
SWNAp UL AIGUTY

-~ a4
cwor - % " . _.1-1.. Py .
oo o . v -
e @ ® an Ty @
T aung W, - I ey,
LT WL W TS WS - T @ HOGER 3 uoumay LN WL T I - ST SRR iy
sawnuny dwng saguny dumg

FIEH 165 I PNERN 251 19 WepY OvE 3 PIEICT T 51




nEEM

95050

LEP0i10

00500

L 9E1E00

FOLE00

1£95:00

siioii

s

W00

JAZ 2 [

wana

[T

0L:57:00

9E15:00

BETS00

i TEYI00

MiLYi00

FIIS 00

£E1010

1Esvoe

S0:50:00

LE0:00

PTS0:00

00:50:00

60150:00

115000

80:50:00

SI:S0:00

IS0

$0:50:00

BLE000

0:50:00

f1:50:00

ELEHROD

TOIS0:00

NI:S0:00

€0's0'00

£T5000

60:50:00

Ng:50:N0

wisoon

et iy

L0:50:00

60:90:00

or

o

L)

o

T o Yy wownay

T U o) uswmoy

2 4 UORES g wommnay

Z 4 voTms ) vommay

T # TonEs g uomnay

T 4 Uogms gy} uomnay

T 4 s i uog

Z # ungmF g uonay

T # uogms g uanmay

T 4 uonms Yi uormay

2 4 uonms Yy wormay

© # opms yyp vormay

T #uones g1 gemmay

T4 TS g demmay

4 ungers Ly uomy

TH vogrs yy vaamay

T 4 voyms Yy vormmay

7 # oS Y1 wormay

T # moqes Y vownTy

T #TMMS I gomazy

4 unges | uonary

T uOHER Yy uounay

T # UOE Y| uonmay

2 oS YT dormay

T 4 Toues Y vomunay

T 4 vomems yn vommay

PSH0:00

ssroiTn

w0

siosin

60:00:10

wisio

65:00-10

sTapio

Lyasing

Ll

61:50: 1

tO9SILET0

W10:10

opEeHIn

©oLES

REII0

srHon

[T a0

TG00

ISA00

ASTO00

TE50:00

sz

$0:50:00

TE20°00

05#0:00

THT0:00

FEM00

9ET0l0n

st

70:20:00

STHO0N

NE20:00

Lo

67:20:00

1§71 yrumy wounay

157 Qoumy uonmay

1K1 4=y isnacry

15719ty Weauy

XY R iy

7= ey

157 youey utunay

187 youmy ununay

187 Yy uoianay

$57 Youey ueranay

157 Y vopumay

157 Yy vopmay

187 gy oy

18T youey momRay

157 youmy uonmay

157 gmmy nomay

1§71 ydumy uormay

18T yumy vopmay

157 40 dopuney

LE7 Yoy arsinry

187 yumy unnaiay

187 Yy unpmay

1§77 Yaumy vomnay

157 ey nopnsy

157 Taowy sommay

1§ ey vormay

S00MZ
It

ﬁ SO0RT '
1t




wo

o

4508

e iEan

86:00:10

Ibi55:00

WIEL00

riiEa

wn

o

0G:RY:00

o

wiran

EEZ500

6T05:M

wir

A

e 000

e

oo

509000

FEIS000

TEE0:00

or

paloon

60:90:00

TS

slisnia

20:50:00

QT:50:00

*rom

. T
Ll !
at t
nt 1
L] T
L1 !
) T
" '
x {4
" l
] 3
at 1
. r
. 1
v t
" 1
n t
o 1
0 T
6 1
. t
0 1
or r
o 1
.

o 1

T v g Ty

2 = e ) ey

2w b ) e

@ noyms Py vormay

T 4 oams yy vormnay

T # Doums YT uormnay

T U gy w0y

¥ ungloR 1| uo

© # uosEs yy| vogunay

T woIms Yy womay

2 4 moges g vormay

2 4 voyms g somnay

T Bl g vy

T 4 Doms T unArmay

I b i ey

& P e

& @ v i eosnry

£ g iy ey

T v g ooy

T TOnmS A UoTasy

2w iy gl iy

& m v g sy

T S Y ety

Z wMonT Yif vormiy

€ 4 monens 1) vornay

T g i) iy

L i

ST I0T0

T0:60:10

T

e T

traria

wire

i

RESCID

MO

tman i

[ETaN)

0F:$0:10

6pi60:T0

vl

witEm

ot

00:50:00

15:20:00

L il

9% S
2 '
N H
@ 1
L3 b
L T
e 15

9% v
[ [}
" B
24 ]
Lo :
" 1
L4 T
x4 I
" ks
4 '
9z T
sz []
@ 3
" 1
@

14 1

157 yumy tisuny

1§71 yuwy uonmay

T ey

187 Yoy vommay

1877 Yoy uoRmy

157 i pemnty

151y iy

TR sy

151 Yy wopniy
15 4 ursnsy

1517wy vonmyy

1Y ey

1§ ypoay anrmay

1377 sy ey

1187 yaury unhmay

157 yumy uommay

18] g ey

1577 ¥y nonsay

IS Ty wounsy |

1S gy anpnay

154 g i

157 yamy uotanoy

T 1570y uonmsy
:

[§7 9wy oman=y

SHNRT

sonez

SIE

| 50087




ire

“wo

io9gi6s0n

£P95D0

HTW

LOLE00

LI

' ssep00

2E:97:00

i SKSPI00

£TE5:00

thvoi10

PELSDO

00D

DERID

| zoswn

"

SEES00

10°0g00

£5T0:10

S0:95:00

S1RK00

TTNS00

TEENTO

PRS00

| Lurion

i

Lrgoion
Loiany

P1:50:00

TE50:00

LS00

LT0'00

Suison

WEH00

ES:50:00

$H50:00

Spi50i00

£€:50:00

SEIS0:00

6:50:00

0T50:00

15:50:00

HES:00

EPiSON

9€:50:00

IT'solon

00

61350:00

0TiC0:00

T v i g ey

© e gy ey

£ g i iy

R ]

W v i g
£ n e g me——y

T4 uonms Yy unninay

T uoyas Yy uowmay

§ 4 U iy o=y

T # uousS Yy vonmay

< 4 Uoges yn vormey

£ 4 0ogEs gy womny

T4 TS gy nomnay

© ¥ oAms YT aotunTy

THNOHES ) ey

T # ine g ronmiy

T 4 opE Y SOy

T 4 ogas gy Cofnay

T # mowRs yy uormay

T # RS Y voranay

gy v—

£ @ v g —

T W UOYEIS Iy uowmay

T+ vomTs Yy uommay

T 4 tofes y omnay

T 4 TOUES yT ToMmay

STFIe |

mueie

ESIPEID

PO:00:10

SLTRTE

STE0T0

BIIZHN

LEWE.

smucan

SSNS:00

Latall

e

raiie

LRl

9gi08: 10

(L0

PUSHT0

ECZONN0

lov¥iio

SEHOT0

&)1Lpi0

opiLsion

RGN0

PERE00

Tres o

STROTO

BE:H0:00

$SITN0D

1E40:00

£9:Z0°00

SEpO00

TEZ0:00

9TH:00

miz0:00

haza)

HZE00

STHIDD

LpiTnion

ivran
srpoan

LEYN:00

LET0:00

SEB000

nEDE

E:0:00

REZONN

STH000

crgmnn

0T:0:00

£€:20:00

1Ep0:00

LEZ0ND

1Sy vonmay

1871 yrumy womay

18T yPoey TorEnay

1577 Yoy vopmy

15T gy oy

IS ypumy noyny |

IR Yy uniumay

© 1§77 yourmy uounay

157 yey vopmnay

157 Youwy uomm3y

187 il i

15T Yy wopmay ¢

15 g ubensy
g aemney

187 {Ruwy Ammay

1§77 Yy vonmay

1877 Ty ooy

15T Ywey vommay

187 Yoy vaEmay

187 gy uermay

1 iy vy
]

157 youmy uownsy

IS8T youEy acrmay

157wy vorumay

157 Yroey vommay

50087

s o

SUlYT

S00%Z
[EEE

e




o

Bt

T e

£0:00:10

0500:(0

9T:95:00

$E:ZE00

]

e

wiras

N

v

00:80:10

sia0lo

BEENTD

DTRO:1A

Lt

s

00:50:00

05000

950:00

b

Lrghinn

e

5000

00:50:00

£5iR0:00

D1:50:00

9E:S0:00

£0:50:D0

o0

10:50:00

61:50:00

515000

T # uoes il ey

Ty Loyms Y WAnmiy

2 4 UOTIERS N oTm=Y

T # Soums yy) orunay

T e v Uy E—y

72 O g8 w—y

T w ey iy w—

3@ v gy

T Ve g m—

T vy w—y

T 4 wons ) vomnay

T ¢ 0onmS Y uemmy

L gy Y

T B ungmR Yy uowmay

T 4 v Y] uomay

T # Tapm@s yn vommay

2w oy

L]

$TO

- 002 © WhuAdos |
L] TR
Ll LY Fis il
£CO1T0 Z5h0:00
L] SKT0I00
orFSI0 SEH000
§5L0110 €000
freuliL] 66000
e s

A1

YT:0:00

172000

LTHO0D

120100

SHP0N

BE:ZNN0

YEB0:00

Lroon

000

FFE000

woa aEuwo mwn

answwp Aq pasedad Lodey

1571 Wy ey faas

157 yaumy vornay oy
iELts =0

Ty sy oz

o R § s

T ISTyemy namnsy 0087

1S gy anmnay | | 50087
i =

15 ey ey fo s

L) Wy ey oo

' 187 gy oommay i SDNRT

157 9wy normay o

g w——y SHORT

1S Uy anmnay S00RT
I

1577 youay wowmay SO0RT

1§77 youey vonmay e
]

P g unenty B

L g g g
= [

ki e | SHORT

1§77 Yoy armay SHORT
TRETE e



padeospue| pue Aip pjay duqg . pasiedal ;| suoz




Z29) 8L LL 90¥'8.L So|qeAI90ay [e10L

8652 628°L (692'G) so|qeAn1aoay paby (ejol
(02z'8) GS6'G. G/1'v8 palid {ejol
{(e106) 8y'zz6ClL LZ'SE6°LT pallig SJUNoddy 10j oSN JJEM DAY
- = pawie|day
(0007229) - 00029 Buyoes |
00§ 0 - JuBIpPAH
g ¥12°18 8/4'152 VOH - [eloJawwo)
(¥68't) 9z0'L1 026'Sl Jenuapisay
uonduinsuo) abeiaAy
(000'88p'c) 000'899'9 000°951°01 pawnsuo) suojjes [ejo|
= - pawiepay
(000'229) - 000229 Bunjoel|
- = - JuBIpAH
(000°921°1) 000'7i7L L 000'0Z€'2 VOH - [e1oJawwo)
(000°0%9°1) 000'¥25°G 000'¥91'2 [ejuapisay
uondwnsuo)
€S 9LS (12 Palilg Sjunoddy jo JaquinN [ejoL
- - pauwiejoay
- l L Bunpoer]
(€) 0 £ jueiphH
¥l 6 VOH - [BloJaWwWo)
LG 109 0Stv |enuapisay
LZ-unp oc-unr
aJuelIeA suoljoauuo) :O_un_._omwn_

NIYWVYINIG)




L

BNUIABY JOIEMBIISEAN & SNUIADY I2lBpA ®

1z{9 z/S 7 /8 72 tZfT ozTfTT ozZTT ozfoT 0z/60 0T/g0 ozflo 0z/g0

00 0%

00°000'0T$

00'000'0Z%

00'000°0€$

00'000'0Ys

00°000'05%

00°000'09%

00°'000’0L$

00°000'08%

00 000'06%

00°00000T$

KioBaje) Aq anuaaay KiojsiH yjuow Bullig zi




43

pled ||y 12 wswAhed uop Joj s198uuoosiq
(44 Buny sbe ] uanbuieg
Zl pallep 1o jusnbuljag
00°0% SUOI}93]|00) UOIJBJaPISU0Y pleog
0008 30O 3 0} Uojjesapisuo] pleog
00'0S} $ |62 $ | 6¥'8EY $ | 95202y $|10¥8L°2L $ 12/9
00°0S1 $ > $]4672L $ | 96°GP6'E $ [ tz0es'o8 $ 12/S
6¥'829°L $ | 96°StY $ | 88°8LG $ | LE°/60°E b | 6161828 $ X444
9GELL'L $ | E6'¥LS $ | 09v20°L $ | 8z6lZ¢E $ | 0268599 $ (X4}
00°0S1L $ | 95°€96 $|PS0LL $ | ¥9'159°C $142898'L2 $ 12/
00’05t $ = $ | 6’02l $ | 089¢28¢C £2'8£8'29 3 L2/
00'05L 3162V $ | G2se9'tL $ [ 82/9¥°0} $ | 0Lv8Y'8L $ 0cietL
00°0S1 S - $]208¢E $ [SECIS'E 5 | LE'6EY 28 $ 0¢/LL
00°051 $|G2¢ $ | 6C°ChL $[066L0F $ | 9¥'€L0CH g 0¢2/0L
S9'EVE $ T $ |65y $1929l6€ $ [ GG'GLL'GH $ 0¢/6
£2°092 $|2res $]0.°99¢ $122¢€8l'8 $ | 99'+95'¢2C] $ 0Z/8
00°0S1 $ | 8v'62L $ | 65206 b | 8L'€E0'9 $ | ¥6°8Er ' ¥0L ] 0¢/L
00'0St $ = $ 1 se0ze $]28/6CL $ | G9°'Gov'8L $ 02/9
+0Z1L IejoL Aeq 06 |e}OL [ABQ 09 [B10L Aeq Og |el0L 3]qeAIaday |ejol 3jeqg
B ] m a
= =
itz E— [———|
_— = = = —
= e

110day SUOND3||0) puUe 3|GBAII3Y SJUNOIIY YIUOW Z|




€l

. . . -

) N EHN SULIOIYD) QU] s m_.__._._‘...__:._E:ua:a_,.,_ _w,..,mﬂs_ul .MMM MMM WNM r—‘NN.>m_\ﬂ_
RO ol g & &S . . .

& T A B & & N & 18°0 002 8y’ | 2-1dy

000 00°0 %4 L1Z-JeN

- 110 1G°L 292 12-9e4

100 18°) 9,'C Lz-uer

0o’ 100 LeL 102 02-9e@

. ¥1°0 16T v'e 0Z-AON

o N i GL'0 6Ll 0£C 0Z-1°0

oo’z ¥1°0 99'L 0L’z 0z¢-das

oSz 06°0 6G°L 0£'¢C 0z-bny

GL'0 9/l 90'C oz-Int

. /10 ZN" vv'e 0z-unp

E€HN puLIoOlyD OUON|  BAY 210 aeq

€HN - aulojyD ouoN-bay T 1D

0G° 2A0QY a9 1SN siuswalinbay| ajels
BAY |enuuy jJuaung

Buliojluo AN[enD J91eM

Ailenp pue uoponpoid Jajem V_ m < 2 < m .._ Z _ @ ]



sea fUlED = pios | PoSEYIING W

L & Gl > R & ;

& & & & o & oa & @ & & & o &g a00'E-
S A & & S & S & @ S @& @ W v F N
S & F P & ,.vn.% & & & .nm.&, S & FFE S & &S

e =

000'+T

& & @

- = & ] -
7 7 000'Z
000't
0009
000'8

_
—— — 000°0T
1 000°ZT

000°9T

000°8T

Joday Aljiqejunosdy Jajepn




St

%9/°06 %bZ 6- (889) . 2619 LY. 91§ L2/8L/9 |Lzaunr
%GG'€6 %SGt"9- (819) 0 Z15°2 0€0'8 90§ 12/02/S |LZ Aen
%Z1 06 %886~ (206) G 122'8 vEL'6 90§ LZ/6Liy [z Iudy
%6%°90L %619 ove Gl 0Z6'€ GBI'E 0S5 L2/6L/E |12 Yoten
%0126 %06 .- (P¥v) 0 G/L'S 6L9°G 205 12/02/Z |LZ Aenigad
%SC 16 %G.'C- (€11) 7 866'C 8L’y 861 1Z/SL/L  |LZ Aenuer
%25 66 %8¥'0- (02) 0 859°G 989°'G o6¥ 0¢//L/ZL |0 19quads(d
%€ 00} %¥E 0 e 8 6216 901’6 68¥ 02/8L/LL |0Z JoqWaAON
%6986 %LE L~ (Gv1) . 9G6'0L  [|80L°L1 G8Y 02/61/0L |02 1290100
%S0°Z0L %G0'C ¥S2 8 vy9CL  [86ECL L8Y 02/8L/16 |0g Jequaldas
%ZL 10l %ZL'L vil 8 ¥G.'GL  |88G°GlL vlv 0z/8L/8 |0z isnbny
%8001 %810 Z9 L 9662l |s68°CL 9% 0z/LL/L oz Ainp
%6666 %01 0" (2 . 1GZ'0L  |0920l £9¥ 0c//L/9 |0gaunr
[RINT) %92 - (212 8 /G1'6 11£'6 % 0Z/8L/S |0Z AeiN
%bE' L6 %99'Z- (9v1L) J 9z¢’s 6.%'S G 02/.\/y |02 1ndy
%L1L'G6 %68 - (S61) ) €6.'¢€ 966'€ 5474 02/8L/€ |0C Yale
%SG/.°00L %G/.'0 62 6 0v8'c 0Z8°€ 434 02/.V/Z  |0g Aeniga4
%ET L6 %L1 T (801) ol z6.'¢ 0l6'E Y% 02/9L/L |0g Aenuer
%Z9°96 %8€ ¢~ (951) G Lov'y 29 A% 6L/ZL/Z) |61 Jequadag
%S/°86 %SGZ |- (86) el 20.'. €18/ Gl 6L/SL/LL |61 JOQUOAON
%86°Z01L %86'C 9¥¢ i 6Ll [S09°LL 0% 61/9L/0L |61 4290100
%9Y"16 %S Z- (19¢) 0 9G8'clL  [Z1Z'vL 66¢ 6L/LL/6 |6l Jequsldas
%06°86 %04 |- (o¥1) Gl ¥SS'ZL  [60Z2°2)L 68¢ 6L/9L/8 |61 isnbny
%c.' L0l %Z.'L 8G1 6 0GE'6 L0Z'6 18¢ 6L/.L/L |61 AInp
%10°26 %66°Z- (ovz) €l 9G/'2 600'8 L€ 6L/21/9 |6l dunr

104 sso19% () ssoq1 19410/ asn SI9JI9IN SuoljPduUuU0)  dleq peay Yjuoi

pajunoaay s'leg Buiysni4 pajg J9)selN Jo JaqunN




9l

BUN[* JO YJUO BY} JOJ SMO]] JBJEMIISEM

Al{enp pue uolIONPo.Ld JANEMIISEA

XUVINYHINI) =




L}

SaA siuN PIS Ob'2 SIUN PIS 0'6 (xeN) Hd
SaA SPUN PIS 022 SIUN PIS 0'9 (ww) Hd
S9A VB vy Bw o'y (uw) lenpisay aulolyd
ON /bW Ly /6w gz (Bay) sS1
ON /bw g'9¢ /6w oz (6ay) aosg
%0°26 S9A dsn 900 Qdo 0S0°0 ("BAY) d1MM Mol
aunf Jo Yjuol ay 1o
SSA SNUN PIS S¥°2 SNUN PIS 0'6 (xe) Hd
S8A siun PIs S¥'L sHun PIS 0°9 (unA) Hd
SSA Vbw z'| Vbw o'y (w) [enpisay sudolyo
ON Vbw ggg /6w oz (Bay) ss1
ON /6w g'gz bw 02 (6ay) god
%038 S8A aon v#00 asw 0500 (‘BAY) dLMM MOl
AN3O¥3d AINVINdWOD avnLov 1IN¥3d

Aejy Jo y3uoly ay} Jog




8l

hEL lse 000'SE 000'Z0L'EL STVLOL
%0L 101 000'SE 000'EZ0'L I3 6l-uer
%88 v 000'62 000208 IVE 61993
%09 o8 000°0E 000'£E6 £5¢€ LB
%399 26 000EE 0007£L0'} (3 51-10Y
%L 201 000°ZE 0D0'BE} | E9E BL-REW
%0L v6 000°SE DO0'BED L LLE 6L-UNT
%8L 701 000°6E 000'%0C 18 BLT
%8 801 0002y 000'90E" 68€ 61BNy
%84 86 00068 000 bl B6E 6i-d8s
%01 £6 000 8E 000291 L 107 1190
[%bL 68 000'ZE 000'E0L b Siy L-AON
(%692 06 000 8E 000 LZL'L (2 51990
%96 €01 191662y | 000'8.5'LL SIVLOL
YTl [ 0009t 00062l L 92y Dz-uer
%08 £6 000 0% 000'9SL'L [32 02993
%08 16 000°Ev 000 ¥bE L £V 02BN
%8 20} 000'3Y. 000'ZZE b £SY 0210y
%001 801 008'6¥ D00'SKS & 65 02-REn
%80% GSiL 001 €S 000765 & ESF 0g-unr
%001 101 00005 D002¥S L 89 0Znr
%801 L1 000°vS 0001991 viv 0z-6ny
[%00 y0L 00005 000LIS' L I8y 0g-d8g
%001 20 000°0S 000EPSL _ |s8r 0Z-P0
%86 00 0006y 00099 687 02-AON
0LL I 000'SS 000SLL 96F 02950
%26 16 £EECeSy | 000'Z62'8 STV1OL
-901 901 00DES 000 0¥9' 86F -uer
%88 88 000'FF 000 vEe. 205 g5
(%86 S8 0008k 0002LF ¥0S TN
%08 6. 000°0% 000681 905 12y
%88 19 000vY 000'0ZEL 305 LZAEN
%6 69 0009y 000'Z8E'L 915 vg-unr
% pede) | U

avn_ .—u“_”auwnﬂw< abelaay SMmold [ejoL SUoII3UUO)

ST DAY 18 e IR .

29110)SIH MO Jajemalseps dIOM Youey uoiunay

1




6l

13INI AD 3SINIQWNC - 90\ ZOZ\SHOdey O3 B PUOCQIDMEY) CIDM YOUBH LOINIHASIIUISICUNN-SIOV]

SIN3IWNOD

¥v3ano ZJUSWIPaAsS pue SLGap JO Je3[D Bale Ui SJ9jul || aiy
VIN Jeuopesado pue pasojo aAlea ssedAq Aouabiawg
VIN [euonesado uado aAjea abieyssiqg
Y/N &('219 ‘s|jem ueiqeb ‘sjjem Bujuieal ‘abeuresp 9)a1ouod ‘sadid) sjuausje |einjdnys o} abewep Auy
V/N 32aya pue sdoj Jno ueajd uado aroway ¢Buidid urelp Japun sy} uj PUNOj JUSUIPIS SBA
V/IN adid |e} yJno ay} punose uonelabaa jo uonipuod
INOY4 NI dN @1Ng LNIJWIATIS ® XO0AT1NG NI SSVYHD ZEIpaW 3y} Jo uonipuocd
VIN ZEeale uiseq U) punoj ysniq Jo saall
VIN 2ybBiay ur .81 mojaq uonelabaa sj
V/N £9J1S Je punoy ysei]
VIN Jeale 19}|1} pues ayj ui yjdap juawipag
VY/N ¢ Aeqio} ayy ul yjdap juswipasg
V/IN sinoy gy ulyym uielp puod ayj saoq
VIN |9A3] J9jem puod

137NI NIVHd 3A0D 3SIN3A

uones’o puod

VANVEA AWNVL "HO3L

v0£1952 ‘#OM

1202/01/90 :31Va

HONVY NOINNIY -LOI-LSIA

1371NO Nivid
NOILO3dSNI ANOd ¥3LVMINYOLS

SNOILVY3IdO JUNLONYLSVIINT dILVYM

AYVIAVYANI




0¢

NIVHA FACD INAVRUNT - 90V ZOZ\SHodaY D3 § PuUog\(IDMYY) QIOM HOUBY LOUNBSINSICUNIN-SION]

SLINIWNOOD

LN3INIA3S 40 LNNOWY TIVINS

VIN ZIUBWIPAS pue SLIGap 0 1e3[d EdJR Ul S)9Ul [|e aly
VIN [euonjesado pue paso]d aAjeA ssedAq Aouabiawg
YIN |euonesado uado aAjea abieyasiq
VIN ¢("a30 ‘sjjem ueiqeb ‘sjiem Buluiejal ‘abeulep 93a10u09 ‘sadid) sjuswa|a [eimonyys o} sbewep Auy
V/N 393y pue sdoj jno uea|> uado sAoway ¢ Buidid utesp Japun ayj ul punoj JUSLIIPaS SEM
V/IN . adid |fey :._m ay} punoie uone}abaa jo uonipuo)
aooo ZEIpaW 9Yj} 10 UORIPUOD
ON ZBaIR UISB(] Ul PUnoj ysnuq 1o saaly
S3A £14yBiay u1 .81 mojaq uoije}abaa s|
YIN £O)IS JE punoj yseuy
V/N Jeaie 19j|y pues ay) ut yydap juswipss
V/N Aequoy ay) ul yidap Juawnpas
VYIN £sinoy gp uiyum ujesp puod ayj saoq
Y/N |2A3] 13jeM puod

NIVdd IAOD 3NVP

uoneson puod

VHIVEA AWWNVL "HO31

Y0EL952 ‘#OM

1202/0L/90 :31va

HONVY NOINN3Y -101d1s1d

NOILO3dSNI ANOd ¥31LVMINYOLS

SNOILYYId0 JYNLONELSVHING d31%M

WYY INYYANI




Z-2 dDAUNT - 901 Z0Z\SHOdaY DT B PUOL(QIDMEY) TIDM LIUEY UOIUNSHSIOLISIQNLNN-SAOV |

Q31v13o3A ATIAVIH TIV4LNO/ONIMOW SA3AN GNOd

:SINJNWOD

Q3LV13IOIA ATIAVIH TIV4LNO/ONIMOW SA33AN ANOd

V1va ON cpuod ayj Jo aWNjOA 3y} pa2npal pue pajejnwnodde sey Jusawpag

ON Zjusuijueqiusa 1o wep ay} uo Juasaid uoijejaboa Apoom 10 s931]

ON éjuasaud sjuejd aasieau|;

ON 2uasaid swoojq aebje aAIssadax3

A3Lv.LIo3an A1IAYIH ¢adid (e} no ay} punodie uonjejohaa jo uonipuo)
Y/N Zleuoneiado uado aAjea abaeyosiqg

S3A £$91n39Nn43s JapIno 10 sjajul ay) punote BuLINII0 UOISOIT

08919¥¢ OM LOdS TIVIAS - S3A (aulfaioys je juasaid uojsos3
S3IA Jjuaunjuequia ayj} ul a|qisiA sdass 10 s)oeld ‘doyyuls

ON £9)is je punoj ysel]

LG€96€C OM ON £SHQ9p 10 JU3WIP3S paje|nwindoe Jo Jeajd wuo_c_.

S3JA Zuonipuo? [edmdnas poob ul sjajuf,

1IN4 1319 J2jem puog

Z-2 dOM uoneso] puod

VAAIVEA AWNVL -"HO3L

Y0€19ST -#OM

1202/01/90 :31va

HONVY NOINN3Y -LORLSIa

SANOd 13M
NOILO3dSNI ANOd ¥3LVMINYOLS

YAV YN

e



£-Z JOMNE - 9011 Z0Z\SHodaY OF 7 PuodQIDMYY) QIOM YIUEY UOUNRYSIIISIGUNIN-SIONI

NOILIANOD d0OO9 Ni NOd / 13INI NOYd4 GJAOW3Y N339 SVH LNANIAIS

SINIWWOD

v.1vd ON ipuod ayj Jo aWNjoA 3y} padnpal pue pajejnWnade Sey Juawipas
ON Zjusaunjuequa 10 wep 3y) uo Juasaid uonejoboa Apoom 10 saa1]

ON Zjuasaud sjued o>m_m>=_.

ON Zjuasaid swiooyq sebe aAISSad9XT ._

V/N ¢;adid [je} Ino ay} punoie uopejabaa jo uonpuod

V/N Zleuoneiado uado aajea abieyoasiqg|

ON ¢ S2INJON)S J9NO Jo S}3Ul 3y} punoie BuiN990 uojsoig|

ON 2auyaioys je Juasaid :o_mo._mr

ON juaunjuequia ayj ul ajqisiA sdaas 1o s)oeid .o_o_t_c_m_

ON oS je punoy ysei]

S3JA £ S1Iqap 1o juawipas _um.um_:Ezoom Jo 1e3|d mao_:__

S3A suonjipuod jeinjonys poob ut ﬂo_z__._
BRIE! ZloAa] JajeMm puod

€-Z dOM uoneso] v:on__

VIIVEA AWWNVL "HO3L

Y0€L9GZ H#OM

12/01/90 :31vd

HONVY NOINN3Y :101M1SIa

SANOd 13IM
NOILO3dSNI ANOd ¥3LVMINROLS

SNOILVY3IdO JINLONYLSVYINI J3LVM

AYVIAVYANI




— e R rowre.

¥666.2Z OM - HONINL d330 LV NOLLVL1I93A ILVOILSIANI

2 dDAMWNT - SO\ ZOT\SLOGRY DT ¥ FUOUQIDMEY) QIIM Y=Yy LOIUNaH\SIFWSIULNN-SdOVT

i S e

ONIMOW SO33N ‘SINIWNOD

S13TNI NI ¥3LVM ONIANVLS

2JUBLLIPAS PUE SLIGEP §O JB3ID Bale U] SJaju] [[e a1y

VIN feuonjesado pue paso|d aAjea ssedAq Aousbiawz
S10OdS NI AINJWIA3IS SYH xog Jap11dS Jo fauueyd appou] |
ON +(-219 ‘sjjem uriqeb ‘sjjem Bujuie)as ‘abeuresp ajasouod ‘sadid) syuawa)a [eanjonss o} sbewep Auy
HIALVM H3dANN )2ay2 pue sdoj jno uea]d usdo aaoway ¢Buldid uielp Jopun ay) Ul PUNO] JUSUNPSS SEA|
A3LVIIDIA ATAVIH adid |jey 3no ayj punoie uone}abaa jo uonipuo)
d31LVM SYH 2EIPaLU 8Yj JO UoIPUO)
ON ¢Bale ujseq U] punoj Yysnuq Jo saall
ON 2ybray ui 8} Mmojeq uoijejaben sj
ON £3)IS )8 punoy yser|
dILVM H3ANN el 1)y pues ay) w yjdap jusunpag
d3LVM J3ANN . ¢Aeqaoy) oy ul yydap Juswipas
S3A £sinay gy ulynm ulesp puod eyj seoq
%0¥ |2A3] Jajem puod
7-¢ JOM uojjeso] puod
INTLSAS {31714 ANVS
VHYVEA AWWVL “HO3L NOILO3dSNI ANOd 43 LVMINYOLS
v0€195¢ ‘#OM SNOILVEIdO IUNLONYLSYEINI ¥ILVM

1202/01/90 :31vVa

HONVY NOINN3N :1OR1SIT

AYVINVHANI




1£4

L€ JOMWNF - 80\LZ0Z\SHOdeN D3 ¥ Puod\(0IDMYY) IDA YIUEY UOIUNSY\SIIMISIALLNIN-SdOV]

o5,

SINIWNOD

v1ivd ON épuod ayj Jo swnjoA ay) pasnpaJ pue paje|nwndode sey juswipas
ON Zlusujuequis 10 wep ayj} uo juasaid uoiejabaa Apoom 1o s3al)

ON Ziuasaid sjued aAsieAu|

ON Zluasaid swoojq aebe aaissasaxy
aooo ¢adid |je} Ino ay} punoue uoye}aban jo uopuo)
V/N ileuonerado uado aAjea afieyosiq

ON £591n3oNn43s 31330 40 S)ajul ay} punote Buindso uojsoigy

ON Zaulatoys je juasaid uoisoiy

ON Zuaunjuequua ay} ui a|qisia sdoas Jo s$)oeId ‘BjoyjuIS

ON £93S Je punoy yses]
INNOINY TIVINS £S1IGaP JO JUBWIPSS PAJR|NWINIIE JO Jed[d S}a|u]
S3A ZUopIpuod {eanjanns poob uj syaju|
11N+ ZI9A9] 19]EM puod

l-€ JOM uoyyeao puod

VauvaA AWWVL "HO3L

Y0€1L9SC ‘#OM

1202/01/90 :31vd

HONVY NOINN3Y :1O11sia

SANOd 13M
NOILO3dSNI ANOd ¥3LVMINYOLS

SNOILVYIO JANLIINYLSVYINI ¥3ivm @




£~ dDMWINT - 90\L.Z0Z\SHOdaY D3 B PUOY(QIDMY) QIDM YIUBY UOINRUSIANSOULNIW-SJOVT

ONIMOW SA33N dNOd

€8.1972 OM LNIIWMNVEINI NO NOISO¥3

SIN3IWINOD

v.ivd ON ipuod ayj 40 awnjoA ay) padnpal pue paje|nwnade sey juswipas
ON Zjusunjuequua Jo wep ayj uo juasaid uojje)alioA Apoom 10 soalf
ON ¢juasaud syueld m>m_m>=__
ON Zluasaid swoojq aebje o>_mwoooxm“

SSVYY9O HOIH 'SS3JJV ON

¢adid [jes 3no ay) punoie uonejabaa jo uonpuo)

S3A ¢leuonerado uado aajen ebieyasig
137TNI ON £,§9JN}oNJ}S J3[3IN0 Jo S)3jul 3y} punose Huinadso :o_wohm__
S3A Zauljaioys je Juasaid uoisosz

S3IA Jjuswuequa ayj uj 3|qisiA sdaas 1o SHIeld ‘aloyjuls

ON £9)S Je punoj ysei]

137NI ON £S11gap 10 JUSWIPSS Paje|NWNade JO JedId muo_c_.
137NI ON LUONPUOd [eIN}oNI}S poob u sjajul
T1N4 ZloA9] J9Jem puod

€-€ dOM uojjeso puod

VHYVEA ANNVL 'HO3L

0€19S2 #HOM

1202/01/90 *31va

HONVY NOINN3Y -10¥isia

SANOd 13IM
NOILO3dSNI ANOd d3LVMINYOLS

SNOILVY3dO JYNLONYLSVHINI dILYM @




SIapIg 0} SHoday 03U0D UOISOIT\LNW-SJOV |

S1/L0/2)

podal ul paquIsap se - YIHI0

"3UOU JO PAUILIUOD JOU ‘||NJ JIA0 ‘USY0Iq XOq JUSWURIUOD ysel} - gL
3nid soydepe 940 7 Buissiw/Jiedas o ded Jamas - DS

papaau Jo uea)p ‘@ejdal ‘ledal luondsiold 18|ul ULIOS - IS

papaau 10 puaixa ‘Soejdau Burauay 3is sedal - 48y

papa3au uondadsulal/uodadsul ‘saul| Ja1em/1omas ‘1an02 pue paq Alzadoud - dgad

SAep G uly}M pPOs Spaau ‘Ino paweo| pieA - A

papasu Jo iedau ‘Bunuay aduelo - 40

*339 ‘9JAX®) 038 ‘X313 ‘YajnNwi ‘BuIdUY YIS ‘POS [PRPIBU S3JNSEIW D3 - INDI
papaau Jo Suipjoy 10U ‘Jiedal Jnoysem 232.0U00 - D

€aJE NI JO/pue 193415 UespP - &

JUaAS Ujel SuLNnp pjay J0u S3INseaW H3 ‘Papasu Y01 [INg - Nud

9leN-N
UOSILIO JOJAe] - HINLL

51943019 ||OL - L

sawoH uoiduiyng - g
SAWOH I/IA - IN

S9WoHJaewpual) - WL

aI21US - §

Jap|a4 1103 - 4
BNYS[IM/IHIN - MIA

S3WOH puelysiH - H

pIaipioolg - ¥e v 3S0Y VIIONV 191 100d
s23.(Q - ¥4d
S3WOH APIP3M PIed - @ L £ sy MVYASHOVT EVEL HINL
_ L z S0 ‘45 MVASMOVP 1901 40 L4371 | HAL
‘SJINVN ¥3d4iing
| l $0 '4SY QA9 NOINNTY £60€ HINL
"1TINV 3N [# NOILVIOIA[# 3¥NLDId NOILVIOIA ssayaav ¥3aaqiing
I # obed HONVYY NOINN3Y -3AVN 1L.03rodd 1202°01°90 8leQ

L30d3d NOLLVIOIA NOILLONILSNOD s.3aiinga




SIaplifig 0} sHoday 0jU0D UDISOIF\LNIN-SAON I
SL/L0/2)




